
NOTICE OF OPEN MEETING & VOTE TO 

CLOSE PART OF THE MEETING 

A G E N D A  

COUNCIL MEETING 

City of Moberly 

City Council Room – Moberly City Hall 

101 West Reed Street 

August 07, 2023 

6:00 PM 
 Posted:  
 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Approval of Minutes 
1. Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For July 17, 2023. 

Recognition of Visitors 

Consent Agenda 
2. A Resolution Authorizing A Salary Adjustment For Certain City Employees For The 2023/2024 Fiscal 

Year. 

3. A Resolution Approving Design Recommendations From Arcturis, Inc., For Wayfinding Signage. 

4. A Resolution Approving An Application for 319 Grant Funding Through Missouri Department of 

Natural Resources. 

Ordinances & Resolutions 
5. An Ordinance Repealing Section 2-3 Of The City Code And Adopting A New Section 2-3 Pertaining To 

The City Flag. 

6. An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Missouri Highways And Transportation 

Commission Governor’s Transportation Cost Share Agreement. 

7. An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial Assistance Award With Terms 

And Conditions For Wabash Heights Stormwater Improvements. 

8. An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial Assistance Award With Terms 

And Conditions For Seven Bridges Stormwater Improvements. 

9. A Resolution Authorizing The Destruction Of Certain Local Government Records. 
10. A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri. 

Anything Else to Come Before the Council 
11. Consideration Of A Motion To Move The September 4, 2023, City Council Meeting To September 5, 

2023. 

12. A Proposal From The Tourism Advisory Commission. 

13. Public Comments. 

Adjournment 
14. Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss 

The Status Of Real Estate and Personnel.  (Closed Statue 610.021) (2,3). 
 

We invite you to attend virtually by viewing the meeting live on the City of Moberly Facebook page.  A link 

to the City’s Channel may be found on our website’s main page at www.cityofmoberly.com.  The public is 

invited to attend the Council meeting.  Representatives of the news media may obtain copies of this notice 

by contacting the City Clerk.  If a special accommodation is needed as addressed by the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, please contact the City Clerk twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting. 

1

http://www.cityofmoberly.com/


City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department:  City Clerk  

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For July 17, 2023. 

  

Summary: Please find minutes from the last meeting in the packet for review.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Please approve the minutes for the permanent records of the City of Moberly. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo   X     Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Jeffrey     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kimmons     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

2

#1.



 

July 17, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 1 of 3 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
July 17, 2023 

 
The Moberly City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 101 West Reed Street, 
Moberly, MO, with Mayor Brubaker presiding. 
 
All stood and recited the pledge of allegiance led by Mayor Brubaker. 
 
Council Members answering the roll call were: Tim Brubaker, Brandon Lucas, Jerry Jeffrey, Austin Kyser and John 
Kimmons. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to approve the agenda.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser 
and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Jeffrey to approve the minutes of the June 29, 2023, Council 
meeting as presented.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
The following bids were received for the demolition of three (3) residential structures located at 905 Bond Street, 
1204 Quinn Street and 412 Polston Street: Wiedeman Dozing, $14,500; Luecke Farms LLC, $23,500; and JT Holman 
Construction LLC, $18,500.  A motion was made by Jeffrey and seconded by Kyser to accept the bids.  Ayes: Brubaker, 
Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Mayor Brubaker asked to entertain any motion to remove an item from the Consent Agenda for discussion.  Hearing 
none, Mayor Brubaker asked for a motion for the Consent Agenda to be read by City Attorney, Randall Thompson.  
Kimmons made a motion for City Attorney, Randall Thompson, to read the Consent Agenda.  Lucas seconded the 
motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Bill No. R1492:  “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A HAY CUTTING, BALING & REMOVAL HAY BALES SALE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI AND RYAN BRITT FOR THE WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
BIOSOLIDS LAND APPLICATION SITE PROPERTY” 
 
Bill No. R1493:  “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A PERMANENT SEWER EASEMENT FROM THE WRIGHT LEGACY TRUST” 
 

3

#1.



 

July 17, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 2 of 3 

Bill No. R1494:  “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING WITH EMERY SAPP & 
SONS, INC., FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE MORLEY PUMP STATION RETROFIT AND FORCE MAIN EXTENSION 
PROJECT” 
 
Bill No. R1495:  “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION TO THE 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT DIRECT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECTOR COSTS” 
 
Bill No. R1496:  “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN ARCHITECT’S AGREEMENT 
WITH WSKF, INC FOR THE EXPANSION OF EMERGENCY SERVICES COMMUNICATION” 
 
Bill No. R1497:  “A RESOLUTION DECLARING A PROPOSED STREET NAME CHANGE” 
 
The Resolution Bills having previously been made available for public inspection were read by title one time.  A 
motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Kimmons to adopt the Resolutions.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, 
Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN ADDENDUM TO A COOPERATIVE 
AGREEMENT WITH ADAIR HATHAWAY FOR STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS REIMBURSEMENT” and moved that 
the bill be read two times by title for passage.  Jeffrey seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as 
follows: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made 
available for public inspection was read by title two times.  Jeffrey moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  
Kimmons seconded the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows:  
Roll Call: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Jeffrey introduced a bill for an ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH ADAIR HATHAWAY FOR EAGLE TREE RIDGE SUBDIVISION” and moved that the bill be read two 
times by title for passage.  Kimmons seconded the motion, and upon said motion the vote was as follows:  Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The bill having previously been made available for public 
inspection was read by title two times.  Kimmons moved that the bill be enacted into an ordinance.  Lucas seconded 
the motion.  The presiding officer having called for a vote on the motion, the vote was as follows: Roll Call: Ayes: 
Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTING WITH WIEDEMAN 
DOZING, LLC FOR DEMOLITION OF THREE RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES” and made a motion for it to be read.  Lucas 
seconded the motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 
previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons 
and seconded by Kyser to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Lucas introduced “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF THE 
INDUSTRIAL SITE DEVELOPMENT GRANT” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the motion.  
Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made 
available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Jeffrey and seconded by Kyser to 
adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kyser introduced “A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN ELECTRONIC BUSINESS 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE CENTRAL BANK AND AUTHORIZING MATT DOUGLASS TO EXECUTE AN 

4

#1.



 

July 17, 2023, 6:00 p.m., Council Minutes, Page 3 of 3 

ASSOCIATED RESOLUTION OF AUTHORIZATION WITH CENTRAL BANK” and made a motion for it to be read.  Jeffrey 
seconded the motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having 
previously been made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kyser and 
seconded by Jeffrey to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Jeffrey introduced “A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR A 2023 
STATE HOMELAND SECURITY PROGRAM GRANT” and made a motion for it to be read.  Kimmons seconded the 
motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been 
made available for public inspection was read by title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by 
Lucas to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Kimmons introduced “A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING MONEY OUT OF THE TREASURY OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, 
MISSOURI TO PAY EXPENSES DUE BETWEEN JULY 1, 2023 AND JULY 17, 2023, IN THE AMOUNT OF $951,126.96” 
and made a motion for it to be read.  Jeffrey seconded the motion.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and 
Kimmons.  Nays: none.  The Resolution bill having previously been made available for public inspection was read by 
title one time.  A motion was made by Kimmons and seconded by Lucas to adopt the Resolution.  Ayes: Brubaker, 
Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
Monthly reports were received from various departments. 
 
Colin Schowe, KWIX/KRES Radio Station, was present from the Media. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Lucas to adjourn to a work session followed by a closed session to 
discuss the status of legal actions/litigation and a negotiated contract.  Closed Statute §(610.021)(1,12) RSMo.  Roll 
call vote: Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  Nays: none. 
 
A closed session was held. 
 
Mayor Brubaker reopened the meeting. 
 
A motion was made by Kyser and seconded by Jeffrey to adjourn.  Ayes: Brubaker, Lucas, Jeffrey, Kyser and Kimmons.  
Nays: none. 
 
 

Work Session 
 
The Following Was Discussed At The Work Session: 
 
Discussion Of Pay Scale Update. 
 
Review Of Proposals Received On A New City Of  Moberly Flag. 
 
Review Of A Proposal From The Tourism Advisory Commission. 
 
A Discussion Regarding An Application For 319 Grant Funding Through Missouri Department Of Natural Resources. 
 
Proposal For Arcturis For Wayfinding Signage Design. 

5

#1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Authorizing A Salary Adjustment For Certain City Employees 

For The 2023/2024 Fiscal Year. 

  

Summary: In the 2022-2023 budget, the city council authorized funding the salary study 

findings from 2021 and bringing up all positions to the range minimum with 

the exception of all positions found in the General Fund with a recommended 

increase over 9%.  In the proposed pay scale and approved budget, staff is 

recommending fund the salary study finding and complete the two step 

process for those that were over 9% recommended.  The Police Department 

was also recommended for additional increases due to a lack of applicants, 

constant openings and market conditions.  These are reflected in the new pay 

scale.  

  

Recommended Action: Approve this resolution.  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

6

#2.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________  

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SALARY ADJUSTMENT FOR CERTAIN CITY 

EMPLOYEES FOR THE 2023/2024 FISCAL YEAR. 

 

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2022, this Council adopted Resolution No. R1206 which 

adopted a new pay scale for City employees based upon a salary study completed in December 

of 2021; and 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2022, this Council adopted Resolution No. R1282 which 

authorized the minimum pay ranges from the salary study and a two-step process for bringing 

positions with increases greater than 9% under the study to their minimum range by increasing 

their pay by one-half of the minimum pay range in the 2022/2023 fiscal year; and 

WHEREAS, City staff is now recommending the completion of the two-step process for 

those positions that were over the 9% by increasing pay by an one-half of the minimum pay 

range for the 2023/2024 fiscal year; and  

WHEREAS, the recommended pay increases are reflected in the new pay scale attached 

hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby adopts the attached 

Pay Scale which completes the process of meeting the minimum pay range for all positions 

under the salary study and further authorizes the City Manager to take such other and further 

actions necessary to effectuate the purposes of this Resolution. 

RESOLVED this 7th day of August, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       _________________________________  

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

7

#2.



City of Moberly – Classification and Compensation Scale – July 10, 2023

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Moberly - Classification and Compensation Scale – July 10, 2023 

Job titles 

Department  

Proposed 

Range  
Min 

Proposed 

Range 
Max 

Lifeguard. Seasonal Recreation Parks  $12.00 $16.00 

Reserved for future use Any  $12.00 $16.00 
 

Reserved for future use Any  $12.00 $16.00 
 

Laborer Seasonal Any  $12.00 $16.00 
 

PT Ranger Parks  $12.23 $16.89 

PT Airport Attendant PW Airport  $12.23 $16.89 

Firefighter Fire  $13.52 $18.58 

Property Maintenance Enforcer 

Public Works/ 
Comm. Development  $15.74 $21.73 

Communication Operator Police  $15.11 $20.87 

Customer Service Person Utilities  $14.52 $20.05 

Fire Engineer Fire  $14.83 $20.39 

Semi-Skilled Maintenance Worker Parks  $14.52 $20.05 

Semi-Skilled Maintenance Worker Public Works/ 

Comm. Development 

 $14.52 $20.05 

Semi-Skilled Maintenance Worker 
Utilities 

 $17.07 $23.05 

Utility Clerk/Cashier Utilities  $14.42 $19.91 

Animal Control  Police  $14.52 $20.05 

Custodian  Police/Parks  $12.43 $17.16 

Light Equipment Operator Public Works/ 

Comm. Development 
 $14.52 $20.05 

Administrative Assistant Public Works! 

Comm. Development 

 $15.02  $20.74 

Administrative Assistant 
Personnel 

        $15.02        $20.74 

Administrative Assistant 
Police         $15.02        $20.74 

Deputy City/ Clerk  City Clerk  $16.78 $23.17 

Municipal Court Clerk City Manager  $16.78 $23.17 

Police Court Clerk Police  $16.78 $23.17 

Accountant  Finance  $16.78 $23.17 

Office Manager Parks  $16.78 $23.17 

Administrative Assistant (Executive 
Assistant) - 

City Manager  $15.72 $20.09 

Facility Supervisor Parks  $16.13 $22.27 

Fire Lieutenant Fire  $16.68 $22.93 

$20.09 

$21.09 

Heavy Equip. Operator Public Works/ 

Comm. Development  $16.68 
$22.27 

Heavy Equip. Operator  Utilities  $16.68 $22.27 

Lead Utility Clerk 
 Utilities 

 $16.78 $23.17 

Head Dispatcher 
Police 

 $16.78 $23.17 

Wastewater Operator Utilities A  $19.83 $27.38 

Wastewater Operator Utilities B  $19.47 $26.75 

Wastewater Operator Utilities C  $17.22 $23.78 

8

#2.



Water Plant Operator A License Utilities  $19.83 $27.38 

Water Plant Operator B License Utilities  $19.47 $26.88 

Water Plant Operator C License Utilities  $19.37 $22.27 

Cemetery Sexton Public Works  $16.13 $25.00 
Code Enforcer (Code  
Enforcement I 

Public Works/ 
Comm. Development  $20.00 $28.99 

Police Officer Police  $20.00 $24.31 

Skilled Maintenance Worker Parks  $18.07 $25.09 

Water Quality Control Coordinator Utilities  $16.99 $20.99 

Administrative Assistant (Office 
Manager) Parks  $16.78 $23.17 

Detective Police        $21.45 $28.40 

Police Corporal  Police  $21.45 $28.40 

Police Corporal/Detective Police  $21.94 $29.07 

PR/Social Media Manager  Comm. Development  $16.78 $23.17 

School Resource Officer Police  $21.45 $28.40 
Semi-Skilled Maintenance Worker 
(Assistant Foreman) 

Public Works/ 
Comm. Development  $15.35 $21.52 

Lake Ranger Utilities  $16.13 $22.27 

Skilled Maintenance Worker Utilities  $16.13 $22.27 

Complex Supervisor Parks  $19.37 $26.75 

Mechanic 
Public Works/ 
Comm. Development  $16.13 $22.27 

Finance Manager Finance  $22.79 $31.47 

Recreation Supervisor Parks  $19.37 $26.75 

  Foreman/Heavy Equip. Operate. Public Works  $20.08 $27.73 

Water D&C Foreman Utilities  $19.92 $24.87 

Sergeant Police  $23.57 $31.29 

Sergeant/Detective Police  $23.57 $31.29 

Captain Fire  $18.67 $27.78 

Chief Wastewater Operator Utilities  $22.79 $31.47 

Chief Water Plant Operator Utilities  $22.79 $31.47 

   Commander   Police  $28.04 $37.37 

City Clerk City Manager/Council  $24.38 $33.66 

Public Works Superintendent 
Public Works/ 
Comm. Development  $24.38 $33.66 

Superintendent Parks (Parks 
Superintendent) Parks        $20.08 $27.73 

City Attorney Administration  $31.32 $43.24 

Director of Finance Finance  $34.63 $47.82 

Director of Parks & Recreation Parks  $28.65 $39.56 

Director of Personnel Personnel  $28.65 $39.56 

Fire Chief Fire  $30.29 $41.64 

Director of Public Works Public Works  $34.63 $47.82 

   Police Chief Police  $33.21 $45.23 

Utilities Director Utilities  $31.32 $43.24 

City Manager City Manager  $49.11 $67.81 

 

9

#2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: 

Community 

Development 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving Design Recommendations From Arcturis, Inc., For 

Wayfinding Signage. 

  

Summary: Attached is the proposal from Arcturis for Wayfinding signage design for the City of Moberly.  

This information is based on their experiences from many other communities and input based 

on Arcturis Staff field visits and information from Staff & community stakeholders. 

 

The document features suggested points to reference and provides a couple options for 

suggested signage styling and colors.  Different colors were selected for the Depot District 

(Blue), Parks (Tan) and Schools (Red).    

 

This document and options have been reviewed by staff, Park Board and CID board.  Below 

are the questions/recommendations from the groups. 

 

Downtown 

-Confirm that the signs would use Depot District Font 

-Add – Visitors Center, Post Office 

-Change – Tannehill Park/Splash Pad and 4th St. Theater 

 

Black support poles for signs should be black fluted to match style of light poles. 

 

Parks 

-Arcturis recommended a tan color for the parks sign color. Parks likes/wants a shade of 

green, and that is reflected in the current document.  

 

Sign Styles – there are two optional formats, all of the groups preferred option 2. 
  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence   x     Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other       Passed Failed 

 

10

#3.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING DESIGN RECOMMENDATIONS FROM ARCTURIS, 

INC., FOR WAYFINDING SIGNAGE. 

 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2022, this Council adopted a Resolution authorizing Arcturis, 

Inc., to prepare a Wayfinding Sign study for the City; and 

WHEREAS, Arcturis has completed its sign study and has presented two signage design 

options to City staff for approval; and 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends accepting Option 2 with the following edits and 

changes: 

(1) Signs within the Depot District will use the Depot District font; 

(2) Two additional locations for sign will include the Visitors Center and the Post Office; 

(3) The Tannehill Park and Splash Pad locations will be joined to read “Tannehill 

Park/Splash Pad”; 

(4) The Fourth St. Theater will be changed to “4th St. Theater”; 

(5) Support poles should be black fluted to match light pole style; and 

(6) Parks signs will be green. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Moberly, Missouri, City Council hereby accepts Wayfinding 

Signage Design Option 2 with the edits and changes stated above and hereby authorizes the City 

Manager to proceed with the signage process as outlined in Option 2 and to take such other and 

further action necessary to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

RESOLVED, this 7th day of August, 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

11

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-100

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

City of Moberly  
Exterior Wayfinding Signage

12

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-101

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

1.0 INTRODUCTION
The City of Moberly is creating a wayfinding signage system that will help to
identify destinations for visitors and locals alike creating awareness of attractions 
and services. The City of Moberly Wayfinding Plan serves as a framework for 
implementing an attractive and effective sign system that directs drivers, cyclists 
and pedestrians to key destinations within the City of Moberly and surrounding 
areas. Signage increases a visitor’s comfort level guiding them clearly along their 
journey. A signage system also serve as a unique civic identifier enhancing the 
overall image of Moberly as a destination.

PROJECT GOALS

• Create awareness for visitors and locals of the sites and attractions of the 
greater Moberly area.

• Guide visitors to destinations from all modes of transportation (automobile, 
train, pedestrian, bicycle).

• Enhance the visitor experience - make it welcoming and easy to navigate the 
region and find destinations and parking.

2.0 WAYFINDING PLAN PROCESS
A site analysis was taken of the region to document existing wayfinding
practices. This analysis with the additional of initial schematic design direction 
will be presented to the Stakeholder and Public through a strategic meeting 
which will be held to discuss strategic goals, destinations, and design input. This 
input will help to direct the Wayfinding Plan and will serves as the framework to 
implement the sign system. The design of the system will be based on feedback 
and the strategy outlined in the plan.

• Project Initiation - Fall 2022
• Preliminary Site Analysis - Fall 2022
• Key Stakeholder Meetings - Fall / Winter 2022
• Development of Destination/Wayfinding Plan - Continue through project 
• Preliminary Designs - Winter 2023
• Public Meeting - Winter / Spring 2023
• Design Development - Spring 2023
• Final Design Plans - Summer 2023

3.0 WAYFINDING
For the City of Moberly Wayfinding Plan these elements are focused on wayfinding 
sign types. Categories of wayfinding signs include the following:

• Identification Signs
• Directional Signs
• Orientation Signs
• Regulation Signs

All of these sign types work together as a system to create a sense of place and 
provide an experience for the visitor.  These signs clearly direct the visitor to 

destinations while also infusing the city’s brand reflecting energy and excitement.  
The sign system can help eliminate clutter of sign types created through the years 
by combining messaging into similiar sign types and using consistant guidelines 
for implementation.

IDENTIFICATION SIGNS
Provide the first impression of a destination

• Creates a sense of place
• Creates civic identity and enhances image of the entire community
• Establishes a sense of arrival 

DIRECTIONAL SIGNS
The circulatory system of wayfinding

• Build awareness of destinations
• Routes pedestrian and vehicular traffic

ORIENTATION SIGNS
Offers an overview of the surroundings

• You are here
• Identifies boundaries, entry/exits, buildings, etc

REGULATION SIGNS
Commicates instructions or warning information

4.0 EXISTING SIGN TYPES
An audit outline will be included in the overall final documentation

5.0 WAYFINDING STRATEGY
This next section will define the framework for the wayfinding signage
explaining how it will provide direction and information to its users. This section 
will outline the recommended sign types, functionality and their approach to
placement as part of the visitor experience.

5.1 PLANNING
The common method for developing urban sign routes is the “peeling
the onion approach” i.e. looking at a hierarchy of individual elements as
a series of layers that a visitor encounters when experiencing an urban
environment starting at the vehicular edges of the region and continuing
into downtown, and finally pedestrian main streets and destination.

• Edge of the City: Direct to large District (Downtown)
• District Edge: Direct to smaller subdistricts, major boulevards, major 

landmarks, and parks
• Inside the District: Direct to key destinations and parking
• At the Pedestrian Level: Direct to all destinations

5.2 COMPREHENSIVE WAYFINDING SIGN SYSTEM
To be developed and identified at a later time and finalized at the end of Design 
Development

5.3 SIGN TYPES

DISTRICT EDGE
• Major Boulevard Vehicular Directional
• DOT Signage - City Identifier

INSIDE THE DISTRICT
• Street Vehicular Directional
• Parking Directional

PEDESTRIAN LEVEL
• Pedestrian Directional
• Information Kiosk
• Bikeway Directional

THE DESTINATION
• Indentification Signs
• Interpretive Signs

5.4 DESTINATION & HIERARCY

DESTINATIONS
The criteria for destinations listed on the sign types should be set by The City 
of Moberly.  This can be determined by how many visitors a destination receives 
annually or by attractions deemed of regional significance based on Stakeholder/
Public inpout.  Private businesses should not be listed but a cluster of private 
businesses (i.e. downtown restaurants) can. 

Outline list of destinations for inclusion in the Wayfinding Guidelines will be 
determined though Stakeholders and the Public. 

Districts and neighborhoods help to make places easier to understand and
navigate. Divide places into meaningful zones for use on signs and maps.
Other communities, retail clusters and corridors, employment centers can
be included. A nomenclature system should be put in place to identify
those areas.

Typical for vehicular signs, destination listings should be limited to 3 to

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING– 
EXISTING WAYFINDING GUIDELINES (OUTLINE) 

13

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-102

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

4 message on one sign. On pedestrian level signs the messages can
be more extensive keeping simplicity in mind to cut through the clutter.
Abbreviations may be necessary when listing destinations on sign types.
Use recognizable abbreviations consistently in messaging. For example -
Boulevard-Blvd., University-Univ., Missouri-Mo.

Symbols designating services such as a shopping bag to represent retail
districts can be used to designate these areas as well. Symbols also help to
streamline the amount of information needed on the sign.

DISTRICTS
Districts are areas or neighborhoods that have distinctive characteristics such 
as retail and restaurant destinations, historic or architectural significance or a 
predominant ethnicity (e.g. Little Italy, Chinatown). It could be a group or area 
of businesses defined by a Business Organization or Community Improvement 
District. Scale of buildings or density of development are other physical 
attributes that help define a district. The following are some of the districts and 
neighborhoods identified by the Stakeholders and Public.

Locations to be identified during Schematic Design 

ATTRACTIONS/INSTITUTIONS
Locations to be identified during Schematic Design

MAJOR RETAIL DESTINATIONS 
Locations to be identified during Schematic Design 

OUTDOOR RECREATION
Locations to be identified during Schematic Design

SERVICES
Locations to be identified during Schematic Design

OTHER COMMUNITIES/CLUSTERS/CORRIDORS
Locations to be identified during Schematic Design

5.5 FUNCTIONALITY
Wayfinding Signs identify, direct, orientate and regulate. Other
functional elements include mapping and symbols.
Mapping and symbols to be developed and identified during Design Development

6.0 DESIGN AESTHETIC
Stakeholders and public will be asked what design aesthetic best represents the 
Moberly region. These questions will be asked within an online survey during the 
schematic design phase of the project. These words will be ranked and applied to 
future design development phase of the project.   

Words:
Historic, Traditional, Vibrant, Modern, Energetic, Calm, Whimsical, Edgy, Subdued, 
Cool, Funky

7.0 WAYS TO SUPPORT WAYFINDING
To be developed with the final guidelines

8.0 MAINTENANCE
To be developed in more detail with final guidelines

Ease of maintenance was taken into consideration when designing
this system, as damage sometimes occurs through vandalism, storms or
even flooding.

WARRANTY
To be determined by fabricators / contractors and included in final guidelines

CLEANING
To be determined by fabricators / contractors and included in final guidelines

REPAIRS
To be determined by fabricators / contractors and included in final guidelines

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING– 
EXISTING WAYFINDING GUIDELINES (OUTLINE) CONT. 

14

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-103

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
LIST OF ATTRACTIONS

DOWNTOWN:
Auditorium, Fennel Event Center, Library, Train Museum, 
County Historical Society, Splash Pad, Tannehill Park, 
Fourth St. Theatre, Merchants Hotel

ROTHWELL PARK:
Trails, Athletic Complex, Aquatic Center, Omar Bradley 
Memorial, Thompson Campground

Lions Bueth Park
Fox Park
K of C Paradise Park
Oakland Cemetary
Animal Shelter
Theatre and Drive In
Golf Course
Airport
Sugar Creek Lake
YMCA
Central Christian College
Moberly Area Community College

15

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-104

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING– 
PRECEDENT IMAGERY

A collection of inspiration images
including building signage, 
wayfinding and placemaking.

Inspiration 

16

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-105

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

MAP SIGN

WAYFINDING SIGN

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
PRELIMINARY WAYFINDING LOCATION PLAN

17

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-106

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING– 
DISTRICT COLOR-CODING

DEPOT DISTRICT PARKS SCHOOLS

18

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-107

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
SIGN FAMILY OPTION 1

Gateway SignFast Traffic
Directional Sign

Slower Traffic Directional Signs

Bike Way Signs Destination Identification SignsPedestrian Signs

Parking Signs

4th Street Theatre

Auditorium

Railroad Museum

Library

Tannehill Park

1. Railroad Museum
2. Fennel Event Center
3. Historical Society
4. Municipal Auditorium
5. 4th Street Theatre
6. Library
7. Tannehill Park and
    Splash Pad 
8. Omar N. Bradley Airport
9. B&B Moberly Five & Drive
10. Animal Shelter
11. Oakland Cemetary
12. Fox Park
13. YMCA
14. Paradise Park
15. Lions Bueth Park
16. Rothwell Park
17. Aquatic Center
18. Athletic Complex
19. Heritage Hills Golf Course
20. Moberly Area 
       Community College
21. Central Christian College

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Municipal
Auditorium

Five & Drive

Depot District

Rothwell Park

Omar N. Bradley
Airport

TH E MAGIC CIT Y

Five & Drive

Depot District

Fox Park

Omar N. Bradley
Airport

T H E M AG I C C IT Y

WELCOME TO

THE MAGIC CITY

County 
Historical
Society

0.5
Fox Park

1.8
Lions Bueth
Park

3.0
Rothwell Park

0.5
Fox Park

1.8
Lions Bueth
Park

3.0
Rothwell Park

See Above

1

2

3

456

7

8

9

1011

12

13

21

14

15

20

16

17

18

19

Rothwell Lake

Dog Park

Thompson 
Campground

Omar Bradley
Memorial

Moberly Aquatic
Center

ROTHWELL
PARK

4th Street Theatre

Auditorium

Railroad Museum

Library

Tannehill Park

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Moberly
Aquatic Center

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Central
Christian
College

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Lions
Bueth
Park

Railroad
Museum

Central
Christian
College P

View 
digital 

map:

19

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-108

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
SIGN FAMILY OPTION 1 - DETAIL

20

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-109

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

Gateway SignFast Traffic
Directional Sign

Slower Traffic Directional Signs

Bike Way Signs Destination Identification SignsPedestrian Signs

Parking Signs

4th Street Theatre

Auditorium

Railroad Museum

Library

Tannehill Park

1. Railroad Museum
2. Fennel Event Center
3. Historical Society
4. Municipal Auditorium
5. 4th Street Theatre
6. Library
7. Tannehill Park and
    Splash Pad 
8. Omar N. Bradley Airport
9. B&B Moberly Five & Drive
10. Animal Shelter
11. Oakland Cemetary
12. Fox Park
13. YMCA
14. Paradise Park
15. Lions Bueth Park
16. Rothwell Park
17. Aquatic Center
18. Athletic Complex
19. Heritage Hills Golf Course
20. Moberly Area
       Community College
21. Central Christian College
22. Merchants Hotel

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Municipal
Auditorium

Five & Drive

Depot District

Rothwell Park

Omar N. Bradley
Airport

TH E MAGIC CIT Y

Five & Drive

Depot District

Fox Park

Omar N. Bradley
Airport

T H E M AG I C C IT Y

WELCOME TO

THE MAGIC CITY

County 
Historical
Society

0.5
Fox Park

1.8
Lions Bueth
Park

3.0
Rothwell Park

0.5
Fox Park

1.8
Lions Bueth
Park

3.0
Rothwell Park

See Above

1

2

3

4

22
56

7

8

9

10
11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

Rothwell Lake

Dog Park

Thompson 
Campground

Omar Bradley
Memorial

Moberly Aquatic
Center

ROTHWELL
PARK

moberly!

4th Street Theatre

Auditorium

Railroad Museum

Library

Tannehill Park

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Moberly
Aquatic Center

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Central
Christian
College

T H E  M A G I C  C I T Y

Lions
Bueth
Park

Railroad
Museum

Central
Christian
College P

ROTHWELL
PARK

21

20

View 
digital 

map:

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
SIGN FAMILY OPTION 2

21

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-110

City of Moberly
Exterior Wayfi nding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

CITY OF MOBERLY EXTERIOR WAYFINDING–
SIGN FAMILY OPTION 2 - DETAIL

22

#3.



© ARCTURIS, 2023

REVISIONS
1. 230614 Changed Color

701 MARKET STREET, STE 1300
SAINT LOUIS, MO 63101
ARCTURIS.COM

REVIEWER/S
RD, JB

City of Moberly
Missouri

DESIGNER/S
RD, BK

06/14/2023

G-111

City of Moberly 
Exterior Wayfinding
Project Number: 22-3278.00

Next Steps
- City of Moberly to pick direction to move in based on design options

- City of Moberly to supply list of names to be included in first round of signs to be produced.  

- Arcturis to make edits and adjustments during Design Development for chosen direction

- Arcturis to order material samples to review for approval

- Arcturis to create preliminary message and signage schedule

- Arcturis to create specification outline for review

- Virtual Meeting to review Design Development progress - Date TBD

23

#3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri, Authorizing Application For 

Section 319 Grant Funding For Stormwater Planning. 
 

  

Summary:   The City of Moberly will be applying for up to $162,000 of stormwater grant funding 

from MoDNR as part of Clean Water Act Section 319 Grant funding for the Nine 

Element Watershed Plan and part of Moberly’s overall effort to allow future 

improvements to follow a prescribed, prioritized planning methodology. This water 

quality planning will evaluate non-point-sources of pollution and their impacts to the 

respective watersheds and is an opportunity to receive over 30% funding up to 

$162,000 towards the project, which is estimated, in 2022 dollars, to cost $444,000. 

Receipt of the 319 Grant funding will reduce the overall investment to less than 

$300,000. The 2023 through 2025 CIP budget plan lists $485,000 for stormwater 

planning for both this 9 Element Watershed Plan and Barr’s contribution to 

Moberly’s Integrated Management Plan covering both Stormwater and Wastewater, 

required by Moberly’s commitment to MoDNR in 2018. 

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution 

  

Fund Name: Public Utilities Operations—Stormwater Department 

  

Account Number: 301.115.5502 

  

Available Budget $: To be transferred from operating reserve fund. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
  x   Correspondence   x   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report    x   Other  Add’l Information      Passed Failed 

 

24

#4.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________  

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AUTHORIZING 

APPLICATION FOR SECTION 319 GRANT FUNDING FOR STORMWATER 

PLANNING. 

 

WHEREAS, the Environmental Protection Agency through the Clean Water Act has 

focused on Watershed-based Plans (“WBPs”) to address NPS pollution; and 

WHEREAS, grant funding from the Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

(“MoDNR”) is available through Section 319 of the Clean Water Act to assist local communities 

in developing Nine-Element WBPs; and 

WHEREAS, City staff seeks authority to apply for up to $162,000.00 of stormwater 

grant funding through MoDNR; and 

WHEREAS, City staff requests authority to prepare and submit the grant application.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED this 7th day of August, 2023, by the City 

Council for the City of Moberly, Missouri, that City staff is to prepare and submit an application 

for grant funding described herein and further that the City Manager is hereby authorized to take 

such other and further action necessary to accomplish the purpose of this Resolution. 

 

       _________________________________  

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

 

 

25

#4.



26

#4.



27

#4.



28

#4.



29

#4.



Coon Creek

Elk Fork
Salt River

Sugar Creek

Sweet
Spring
Creek

Sugar Creek-East
Fork Little

Chariton River

Coon Creek-Elk
Fork Salt River

Barr Footer: I:\Proposals\WR\2022\P038.22_Moberly_Stormwater_Master_Plan\Maps\FigureA_Moberly SWMP Watershed Map.mxd

MAJOR WATERSHEDS

Stormwater Master Plan
City of Moberly

FIGURE A

0 2,000 4,000

Feet

!;N

HUC12 Watershed Boundary
Subwatershed
Storm sewer
7 Bridges Watershed
SE Development Watershed
Municipal Boundary

30

#4.



 

 

1001 Diamond Ridge, Suite 1100 

Jefferson City, MO 65109 

573.638.5000 

www.barr.com 
 

 

 

DRAFT Watershed-Based Planning Grant Application 

Clean Water Act Section 319  

Prepared for 

City of Moberly 

July 2023 

 

 

31

#4.



 

 

C:\Users\MeetingsOfficeUser5\AppData\Local\Temp\tmpF900.tmp 

 i  
 

Watershed-Based Planning Grant Application 

July 2023 

Contents 

1 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

2 Project Executive Summary .............................................................................................................................................. 2 

2.1 The Sugar Creek Lake Watershed ............................................................................................................................ 2 

2.2 Overall Project Planning ............................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.3 Challenges and Opportunities within the Watershed ...................................................................................... 4 

2.3.1 Socioeconomic ........................................................................................................................................................... 4 

2.3.2 Legacy Surface Coal Mining .................................................................................................................................. 4 

2.3.3 Existing Cost-Share Practices ................................................................................................................................ 5 

2.4 Stakeholder Involvement and Education .............................................................................................................. 5 

3 Watershed Description ...................................................................................................................................................... 6 

3.1 Surface Waters ................................................................................................................................................................. 8 

3.2 Physiographic Setting and Climate.......................................................................................................................... 8 

3.3 Soils and Geology ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 

3.3.1 Soil Types ...................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

3.3.2 Soil Erosivity and Stream Power .......................................................................................................................... 9 

3.3.3 Geology ......................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

3.4 Land Use and Land Cover ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.5 Other Features of Interest .........................................................................................................................................10 

4 Project Workplan Narrative – Scope of Work ........................................................................................................11 

4.1 Overall Goals – Sugar Creek Lake ...........................................................................................................................11 

4.2 Project Manager and Fiscal Manager ...................................................................................................................12 

4.3 Other Sponsoring Agencies ......................................................................................................................................12 

4.4 Travel Expenses..............................................................................................................................................................12 

4.5 Committee Support .....................................................................................................................................................13 

4.6 Contractors/Consultants ............................................................................................................................................13 

4.7 Partnership Support .....................................................................................................................................................13 

4.8 Water Quality Monitoring and Watershed Modeling ....................................................................................13 

4.9 Stakeholder and Public Involvement ....................................................................................................................13 

4.10 Information and Outreach Efforts ..........................................................................................................................13 

32

#4.



 

 

 

 ii  
 

4.11 Presentation of Draft and Final Watershed Plans ............................................................................................13 

4.12 Related Projects or Grant Programs ......................................................................................................................13 

4.13 Measuring and Evaluating Project Success ........................................................................................................14 

5 Environmental Data Collection and Modeling Narrative ...................................................................................15 

5.1 Scope of Work ...............................................................................................................................................................15 

5.2 Task 1: Establish water quality issues and goals for the reservoir. ............................................................15 

5.3 Task 2: Reservoir characterization and data gaps ............................................................................................15 

5.4 Task 3: Estimating Nutrient and Sediment Sources to the Reservoir ......................................................16 

5.4.1 Task 3a: Watershed Nutrient Loading .............................................................................................................16 

5.4.1.1 Watershed Model Development .............................................................................................................16 

5.4.1.2 Watershed Data Collection ........................................................................................................................17 

5.4.1.3 Model Calibration and Validation ...........................................................................................................17 

5.4.2 Task 3b: Internal Load Estimates. ......................................................................................................................17 

5.4.2.1 Sediment Chemistry and Phosphorus Release ..................................................................................17 

5.4.2.2 Task 3c: Septic system loading ................................................................................................................18 

5.5 Task 4: Develop BATHTUB model ..........................................................................................................................18 

5.6 Task 5: Monitoring Recommendations ................................................................................................................18 

5.7 Task 6: Reporting ..........................................................................................................................................................18 

6 Planning Deliverables Worksheet................................................................................................................................20 

7 Information and Outreach Narrative .........................................................................................................................21 

8 Project Specific Information and Outreach Deliverables Worksheet ............................................................26 

9 Schedule of Milestones ...................................................................................................................................................28 

10 Sponsoring Agency – Personnel Roster Worksheets ..........................................................................................32 

11 References ............................................................................................................................................................................34 

 

 

  

33

#4.



 

 

 

 iii  
 

List of Tables 

Table 3-1 Missouri 305b Report Water Quality Data for Sugar Creek Lake .......... Error! Bookmark not 

defined. 

Table 3-2 Sugar Creek Lake Average Nutrient Values Compared to Impairment and Screening 

Values from 10 CSR 20-7.031 ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Table 6-1 Planning Deliverables Worksheet .............................................................................................................. 20 

Table 7-1 Partners ................................................................................................................................................................ 22 

Table 7-2 Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Committee .............................................................................................. 22 

Table 8-1 Information and Outreach Deliverables .................................................................................................. 27 

Table 9-1 Schedule of Milestones .................................................................................................................................. 29 

Table 10-1 Sponsoring Agency – Personnel Roster Worksheet ........................................................................... 32 

 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Watershed Features 

Figure 2 Land Use and Land Cover 

Figure 3 Population Distribution 

Figure 4 Low Income 

Figure 5 Unemployment Rate 

Figure 6 Low Life Expectancy 

Figure 7 Percent Population Below Poverty Line 

Figure 8 Topography 

Figure 9 NRCS Soil Survey  

Figure 10 Stream Power Index and Soil Loss Potential 

Figure 11 Priority Areas of Erosion Inspection  

Figure 12 Sugar Creek Lake Watershed with Water Well 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A USGS Elevations Report for Sugar Creek Lake 

Appendix B USLE Soil Loss and SPI Equations  

 

  

34

#4.



 

 

 

 iv  
 

Abbreviations 

BMP Best management practice 

Chl-a Chlorophyll-a 

cm centimeter 

EJ Environmental justice 

FFATA Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act 

FY Fiscal year 

GeoSTRAT Geosciences Technical Resources Assessment Tool 

GIS Geographical information system 

GPS Global positioning system 

HUC Hydrologic unit code 

LMVP Lakes of Missouri Volunteer Program 

MBE Minority business enterprise 

MDNR Missouri Department of Natural Resources 

NLCD National Land Cover Database 

NRCS Natural Resources Conservation Service  

NWI National Wetland Inventory 

QAPP Quality assurance project plan 

SPI Stream Power Index 

SWPP Source water protection plan 

TN Total nitrogen 

TP Total phosphorus 

TSS Total suspended solids 

USDA United States Department of Agriculture  

U.S. EPA United States Environmental Protection Agency 

USLE Universal Soil Loss Equation 

WBE Woman business enterprise 

WBID Waterbody identification  

WBP Watershed-based plan 

 

 

 

35

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 1  
 

1 Introduction 

This document is intended to provide the information required in certain fields of the Watershed-Based 

Planning Grant Application, Form 780-2123. Below is a list of the form requirements by item number and 

the location of responses to each item.  

 Item 1. Sponsoring Agency Information – response found on Form 780-2123 

 Item 2. Project Information Summary – response found on Form 780-2123 

 Item 3. Sponsoring Agency’s Authorized Signature and Approval of Application – response found 

on Form 780-2123 

 Item 4a. Watersheds and Impaired Waters in the Planning Area – response found on Form 780-

2123 

 Item 4b. Watershed Planning Background – response found on Form 780-2123 

 Item 5. Project Executive Summary – response found on Form 780-2123 and in Section 2 of this 

document 

 Item 6. Watershed Description – response found on Form 780-2123 and in Section 3 of this 

document 

 Item 7a. Project Work Plan Narrative – response found in Section 4 of this document 

 Item 7b. Environmental Data Collection and Modeling Narrative – response found in Section 5 of 

this document 

 Item 7c. Planning Deliverables Worksheet – response found in Section 6 of this document 

 Item 8a. Information and Outreach Narrative – response found in Section 7 of this document 

 Item 8b. Project Specific Information and Outreach Deliverables Worksheet – response found in 

Section 8 of this document 

 Item 9. Watershed Plan Elements – response found on Form 780-2123 

 Item 10. Schedule of Milestones – response found in Section 9 of this document 

 Item 10b. Sponsoring Agency – Personnel Roster Worksheets – response found in Section 10 of 

this document 

36

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 2  
 

2 Project Executive Summary 

This section provides the information required by Item 5 of Form 780-2123.  

In this application, the City of Moberly (Moberly or the City) is to seeking funding from the Missouri 

Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) pursuant to Section 319(h) of the Clean Water Act to prepare a 

Nine-Element Watershed Based Plan (WBP or Plan) to protect and improve water quality in Sugar Creek 

Lake. Sugar Creek Lake is the source of Moberly’s drinking water; therefore, maintaining the highest 

degree of water quality over the long term is a major concern of the City.  

Moberly is in Randolph County, Missouri, and has a population of 13,783 as of the April 1, 2020 census 

reported by the U.S. Census Bureau (reference (1)). The boundary of the City intersects three Hydrologic 

Unit Code (HUC) 12 watersheds, Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton River, Coon Creek-Elk Fork Salt 

River, and Sweet Spring Creek. In conjunction with developing a citywide stormwater master plan, the City 

seeks to develop a WBP for the Sugar Creek Lake and its watershed.  

2.1 The Sugar Creek Lake Watershed 

Within the Sugar Creek Lake watershed there is nonpoint source pollution from agricultural runoff, 

including pasture and hay and row crop, urban runoff from low-density development and an airport, and 

recreation. According to the 2016 National Land Cover Database (NLCD) dataset, approximately half of 

the land use in the watershed is used for agricultural production. See Figure 1 and Figure 2 for maps of 

the watershed and the land use designations within the watershed. The primary water quality concerns 

include nutrients, algal blooms, and sediment loading. Current data do not confirm an impairment for 

nutrients; however, data collected by the Lakes of Missouri Volunteer Program (LMVP) indicate that the 

lake has exceeded Missouri’s nutrient-screening thresholds for chlorophyll-a (Chl-a), total nitrogen, and 

total phosphorus in some samples during the past 10 years.  

2.2 Overall Project Planning 

The WBP to be developed for Sugar Creek Lake (lake) has the following overall goals:  

1. Protect and improve the lake and its watershed to maintain the highest possible degree of water 

quality in the lake, which is the drinking water source for Moberly. 

2. Reduce and identify sources of nonpoint source pollution to the lake. 

3. Coordinate the efforts and activities of various entities committed to protecting and improving 

water quality in the lake. 

4. Educate and empower stakeholders and the public to increase awareness, support, and 

commitment to protecting and improving water quality in the lake. 

In August of 2020, Moberly completed a source water protection plan (SWPP) to develop strategies and 

provide guidance to stakeholders for the protection of lake and its watershed in order to provide 

37

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 3  
 

sustainable, reliable, and high-quality drinking water supply for the City and its customers. The plan 

aggregated data relevant to the water quality of the lake, including surface waters, physiographic setting 

and climate, soils and geology, land use and land cover, the lake’s impairment status, water quality, and 

sediment quality. The SWPP recommended a number of objectives and strategies related to nonpoint 

source pollution, including:  

 Collect additional data to improve understanding of pollutants in the lake. 

 Gather more information about water quality in the lake and sources of pollutants in the 

watershed. 

 Address challenges with septic tanks and lagoons. 

 Address nonpoint sources of pollutants. 

 Engage the public to establish support for the SWPP. 

The WPB planning process will build upon the nonpoint source-focused efforts of the SWPP by 

conducting the following tasks: 

1. Perform detailed pollutant modeling of nutrient contributions from the watershed as well as from 

the lake itself. 

2. Gather additional monitoring data to calibrate the models to gain an accurate understanding of 

the sources of nonpoint source pollution, calculate the target levels, and key locations for 

practices that will achieve the greatest load reductions. 

3. Calculate the load reductions needed to achieve water quality goals in the lake, primarily for total 

phosphorus, total nitrogen, total suspended solids and Chl-a.  

4. Identify a suite of nonpoint source projects and practices that will achieve the load reductions, 

estimate the necessary resources, and develop a conceptual schedule for implementation, 

including milestones and a monitoring plan. 

5. Establish specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound metrics, including but not 

limited to monitoring that will be used to report on achievements and guide adjustments to the 

Plan.  

6. Determine milestones that will be used to assess and communicate progress. 

7. Create a community education and information campaign to raise awareness of the importance of 

reducing nonpoint source pollution. 

8. Support the network of partners and stakeholders to help develop the Plan and participate in its 

implementation. 

38

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 4  
 

9. Estimate the necessary resources and develop a conceptual schedule for implementation 

including milestones and a monitoring plan. 

2.3 Challenges and Opportunities within the Watershed 

Stakeholders will face significant challenges in developing a robust, effective plan for this watershed. 

Several challenges and opportunities are outlined below. 

2.3.1 Socioeconomic  

Like many smaller communities and rural areas, some populations in Moberly meet the established criteria 

to be considered underserved and low-income. Reductions in manufacturing and demand for farm labor 

mean fewer employers and fewer well-paying jobs. Median household income, rates of unemployment, 

low life expectancy, and population below poverty level indicate that the Moberly area is considered an 

underserved area. See Figure 3 for the population distribution through Moberly and the Sugar Creek Lake 

watershed.  

According to U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s (U.S. EPA) environmental justice (EJ) screening and 

mapping tool called EJScreen (reference (2)): 

 Moberly residents experience rates of low income at or above the 80th percentile, compared 

nationally (Figure 4) 

 Areas of Moberly experience unemployment rates that are at or above the 95th percentile, 

compared nationally (Figure 5) 

 Moberly citizens experience rates of low life expectancy at or above the 95th percentile, compared 

nationally (Figure 6) 

 Moberly has among the highest percentage of population at or below the poverty level, 

compared nationally 

Implementing nonpoint source reduction projects requires resources including money, land, community 

support, and volunteers. Limited local resources can be greatly enhanced by state and federal grant 

assistance. 

2.3.2 Legacy Surface Coal Mining 

The Sugar Creek Lake watershed contains legacy surface coal-mining sites, some of which operated into 

the mid-twentieth century. These abandoned, unreclaimed sites continue to contribute acid-mine 

drainage to the Sugar Creek Lake Watershed and have contributed to the impairment of Sugar Creek. 

Much of the abandoned legacy mine sites that are well documented are downstream of Sugar Creek Lake. 

This mining was ubiquitous, and there is anecdotal evidence of smaller, unreclaimed sites within the lake 

watershed. Part of the development of this plan will be to work with landowners and the public to identify 

more of these sites.  

39

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 5  
 

2.3.3 Existing Cost-Share Practices  

Landowners in the Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton River watershed have partnered with the Missouri 

Soil and Water Conservation Program to implement cost-share conservation practices that reduce 

nonpoint source pollution the watershed. This is an ongoing potential opportunity to leverage resources 

for nonpoint source reduction in the Sugar Creek Lake watershed. As noted in the SWPP, public 

engagement could increase awareness and participation in cost-share in this area. The development of 

WBP will be an opportunity to promote these opportunities.  

2.4 Stakeholder Involvement and Education 

Moberly understands that the long-term success of any plan requires committed partners and 

stakeholders as well as public awareness and commitment to the goals and objectives of the plan. 

Moberly proposes a robust set of efforts to garner stakeholder interest and educate the public through a 

variety of outreach efforts and products. These efforts are described in more detail in Section 7 of this 

document.  

40

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 6  
 

3 Watershed Description 

This section provides the information required by Item 6a of form 780-2123. 

Sugar Creek Lake (waterbody identification number [WBID #] 7166) is a 308-acre impoundment of Sugar 

Creek (WBID #0686) within the Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton River (hydrologic unit code (HUC) 

102802030204) watershed. The Sugar Creek Lake watershed encompasses about 11 square miles, of which 

about one square mile is within Moberly city limits. There are about 14.6 stream miles with about one mile 

within the city limits. There are no lake acres within the city limits. Besides the lake acreage, the primary 

land uses include deciduous forest, hay pasture, cultivated crops and urban development. Most of the 

area is sparsely populated with less than 45 people per square mile; however, the upper reaches of the 

watershed to the south have a population density between 45 and 145 people per square mile (see Sugar 

Creek Lake Figure 1: Watershed Area, Figure 2: Land Cover, and Figure 3: Population Distribution). 

Sugar Creek Lake has three main arms that impound Sugar Creek and two unnamed tributaries. In the 

Missouri 2020 305b Report (reference (3)), Sugar Creek Lake is listed as a Category 5 impairment for 

mercury from atmospheric deposition. It is also described as eutrophic, but is not listed as impaired for 

nutrients. No TMDL has been prepared for the mercury impairment. There is no further discussion on the 

topic of mercury impairment since that is not within the scope of this WBP. 

Table 3-1 shows water quality data for Sugar Creek Lake related to the “List of Lakes, Data, Trophic Status 

and Ecoregion” section of the 305b report. The date range of the data presented in Table 3-1 is 2015 

through 2020, which is a different set of data than that used for the 305b report; thus, there will be 

differences between the geometric mean and any other statistical data presented in the 305b report. 

Using the most recent data is more representative of current water quality conditions within Sugar Creek 

Lake. 

41

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 7  
 

Table 3-1 Water Quality Data for Sugar Creek Lake 

Statistical 

Parameter 

Chlorophyll-a 

(μg/L) 

Secchi 

Depth (m) 

Total 

Nitrogen 

(μg/L) 

Total 

Phosphorus 

(mg/L) 

Non-Volatile 

Suspended 

Solids (mg/L) 

Volatile 

Suspended 

Solids (mg/L) 

Count 47 47 47 47 46 46 

Minimum 2.40 0.48 500 28 1.70 0.05 

Maximum 44.80 1.42 5,080 81 41.50 10.00 

Average 18.0 0.81 914 43 5.93 4.16 

Geometric 

Mean 
15.0 0.79 830 42 4.55 2.78 

Median 17.5 0.76 800 42 4.55 2.78 

Standard 

Deviation 
10.26 0.19 657 12 7.19 2.49 

Coefficient of 

Variation 
0.57 0.24 0.72 0.27 1.21 0.60 

 

Error! Not a valid bookmark self-reference. includes water quality monitoring results (monthly 

maximum) for Chl-a, nitrogen, and phosphorus at Sugar Creek Lake dam from 1990 to 2020. A 

comparison of the average of all data for that time period is shown in the table below along with the with 

the Plains Ecoregion Chl-a Response Impairment Threshold Values and Plains Lake Nutrient Screening 

Threshold Values found in 10 CSR 20-7.031. 

Table 3-2 Sugar Creek Lake Geomean Nutrient Values Compared to Impairment and 

Screening Values from 10 CSR 20-7.031 

 
Chl-a 

(μg/L) 

Nitrogen 

(μg/L) 

Phosphorus 

(μg/L) 

Plains Ecoregion Chl-a Response Impairment Threshold Values  30 n/a n/a 

Plains Ecoregion Nutrient Screening Thresholds 18 843 49 

Sugar Creek Lake Geomean 2015-2020 15 830 42 

 

Current data do not confirm an impairment for nutrients; however, data collected by the LMVP indicate 

that the lake has exceeded Missouri’s nutrient screening thresholds for Chl-a, total nitrogen, and total 

phosphorus at times during the past 10 years.  

To date, there are no data to indicate that Response Assessment Endpoints in 10 CSR 20-7.031 have 

occurred within the same year as an exceedance of Nutrient Screening Thresholds. 

42

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 8  
 

The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has selected the Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton 

River watershed (HUC 102802030204 ) as a National Water Quality Initiative (NWQI) priority water for 

fiscal year 2023 (FY23) (reference (4)). This initiative is a focused approach to assist landowners in priority 

watersheds to apply selected conservation practices to reduce the flow of sediment, nutrients, and other 

runoff into impaired waterways. The Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton River watershed area is 

approximately 32,495 acres.  

3.1 Surface Waters  

Surface waters within the watershed are shown in Figure 1. Multiple first- and second-order unnamed 

streams serve as tributaries to the lake. The outlet of the lake is Sugar Creek, which flows 4.6 miles until its 

confluence with the East Fork of the Little Chariton River.  

3.2 Physiographic Setting and Climate 

The watershed, approximately 7,000 acres in size, is a subwatershed of Missouri’s Little Chariton River 

watershed (HUC 10280203) located in the Missouri River Basin. The watershed lies within an ecological 

region known as the Central Dissected Till Plains, which is located north of the Missouri River and formed 

through soil deposition from glaciation (reference (5)). The Dissected Till Plains extend into Iowa, Illinois, 

Kansas, and Nebraska and are relatively flat, other than river valleys and hills formed through erosion, 

much of which resulted from glacial runoff (reference (5)). Elevation in the watershed ranges from 

approximately 870 feet to 746.8 feet at the dam spillway (Figure 8). 

North-central Missouri has a humid continental climate characterized by long, hot summers and cool 

winters (reference (6)). The region (Moberly, Missouri climate station) receives an average annual 

precipitation of 43.22 inches (1981-2010, reference (7)). May is typically the wettest month, receiving an 

average precipitation of 5.16 inches (reference (8)). The historical high and low annual precipitations at the 

Moberly Climate Station between 1936 and 2018 were 65 inches in 2008 and 22 inches in 1988 

(reference (9)). The average annual temperature for the area is 53.8 degrees Fahrenheit. January, the 

coldest month of the year, averages high and low temperatures of 37 and 19 degrees Fahrenheit, 

respectively, while July, the hottest month of the year, averages high and low temperatures of 87 and 67 

degrees Fahrenheit (reference (8)).  

3.3 Soils and Geology 

The following subsections include soil and geology information for the watershed. Section 3.3.1 includes 

the predominant soil types found within the watershed; Section 3.3.2 includes an analysis of soil erosivity 

and stream power within the watershed to identify erosion prone areas; and Section 3.3.3 provides 

information on the uppermost geologic units in the watershed.  

3.3.1 Soil Types 

Based on the U.S. Department of Agriculture’s (USDA) NRCS Soil Survey, the predominant soil types within 

the watershed are depicted in Figure 9. Soil types within the watershed consist of silty loams that range 

from nearly level to gently sloping soils in the upper areas of the watershed (Mexico-Leonard-Putnam 

43

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 9  
 

association) to moderate to steep slopes near the lakeshore (Gosport-Gorin association). In general, soil 

types on steeper slopes tend to have greater drainage than those on level to moderately sloped areas. 

Permeability of the soil, which is the ability of the soil to infiltrate water, is very low for the silt loams 

within the watershed, which increases their potential erosion and seasonal wetness.  

3.3.2 Soil Erosivity and Stream Power 

Erosion-prone areas within the watershed were identified in the SWPP using the Universal Soil Loss 

Equation (USLE) and stream power indices. The USLE predicts annual average soil loss or erosivity due to 

rainfall. The Stream Power Index (SPI) equation measures the erosive power of flowing water and 

identifies areas within the watershed that are prone to channel formation. Barr identified areas of the 

watershed most prone to erosion by combining USLE and SPI results with high erosion potential (Figure 

10) and priority areas for erosion inspection (Figure 11). 

3.3.3 Geology 

According to the Missouri Geological Survey Geosciences Technical Resources Assessment Tool 

(GeoSTRAT), the geology underlying the watershed area is composed of Mississippian- and 

Pennsylvanian-aged bedrock units overlain by approximately 50 to 65 feet of unconsolidated residuum. 

The Pennsylvanian bedrock units found near the surface around the watershed consist of the Marmaton 

Group and the Cabaniss Subgroup of the Cherokee Group. In a typical geologic sequence, the Marmaton 

Group conformably overlies the Cabaniss Subgroup.  

According to GeoSTRAT, the Cabaniss Subgroup is the shallowest bedrock on the western edge of and 

underlying the lake, while the Marmaton Group is the shallowest bedrock along the eastern edge of the 

lake. The Cabaniss Subgroup in Missouri is composed of sandstone, siltstone, shale, limestone, and coal 

beds and consists of 11 successions or cyclic units with coal beds near the top with some minor 

exceptions. The Marmaton Group is composed of a succession of shale, limestone, clay, and coal beds. In 

comparison with the Cabaniss Subgroup, the Marmaton Group contains thicker and consistent limestone 

units. 

In contrast to the geologic information provided by GeoSTRAT, the well log for a nearby water supply well 

No. 006285 (Figure 12) located approximately 0.8 miles southwest of the lake’s spillway indicates that the 

Mississippian Warsaw Formation is the shallowest bedrock unit. The Warsaw Formation is composed of a 

coarsely crystalline, fossiliferous limestone intermittent with finely crystalline dolomitic limestone 

(reference (10)). 

3.4 Land Use and Land Cover 

The watershed has a variety of land uses due to the combination of rural, urban, and recreational areas. 

The lake is a popular recreation destination for activities such as fishing and boating. Land adjacent to the 

lake primarily consists of forest, agriculture (pasture and hay), and private residences. As of the 2016 

NLCD dataset, approximately half of the land in the watershed is used for agricultural production (Figure 

2).  

44

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 10  
 

3.5 Other Features of Interest 

Other watershed features of interest include: 

 Cooksey’s Quarry  

 Private septic systems 

 Legacy coal mining 

The influence of Cooksey’s Quarry and private septic systems on the lake’s water quality has been 

frequently mentioned as pollutant sources by stakeholders. Cooksey’s Quarry is an inactive stone quarry 

located on City property east of the lake’s eastern arm. The City currently owns and has complete control 

over the Quarry property. Due to a lack of data, the Quarry’s influence on lake sedimentation has not 

been quantified. Private septic systems may contribute nutrients and pathogens to surface waters, 

particularly in areas where groundwater and soil conditions are unsuitable, or the density of septic 

systems is high (reference (11)). The influence of private septic systems on the lake’s water quality is 

undetermined; the SWPP identifies a goal to quantify and address the contributions from these pollutant 

sources. 

The Sugar Creek Lake Watershed contains legacy surface coal-mining sites, some of which operated into 

the mid-twentieth century. These abandoned, unreclaimed sites continue to contribute acid-mine 

drainage to the Sugar Creek Lake Watershed and have contributed to the impairment of Sugar Creek. 

Much of the abandoned legacy mine sites that are well documented are downstream of Sugar Creek Lake, 

this mining was ubiquitous and there is anecdotal evidence of smaller, unreclaimed sites within the lake 

watershed. Part of the development of this plan will be to work with landowners and the public to identify 

more of these sites.  

45

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 11  
 

4 Project Workplan Narrative – Scope of Work 

This section provides the information required by Item 7a of form 780-2123. 

4.1 Overall Goals – Sugar Creek Lake 

The WBP to be developed under this grant will be the first of its kind for this watershed. The overall goals 

of the plan will be to:  

1. Protect and improve the lake and its watershed to maintain the highest possible degree of water 

quality in the lake, which is the drinking water source for Moberly. 

2. Identify and reduce sources of nonpoint source pollution to the lake. 

3. Coordinate the efforts and activities of various entities committed to protecting and improving 

water quality in the lake. 

4. Educate and empower stakeholders and the public to increase awareness, support, and 

commitment to protecting and improving water quality in the lake. 

As noted in Section 2, Moberly has completed a SWPP to develop strategies and provide guidance to 

stakeholders for the protection of Sugar Creek Lake and its watershed to provide a sustainable, reliable, 

high-quality drinking water supply for the City and its customers. The plan aggregated data relevant to 

the water quality of the lake, including surface waters, physiographic setting and climate, soils and 

geology, land use and land cover, the lake’s impairment status, water quality, and sediment quality. The 

SWPP recommended several objectives and strategies related to nonpoint source pollution. This plan will 

build upon that effort by completing the following tasks: 

1. Perform detailed pollutant modeling of nutrient contributions from the watershed as well as from 

the lake itself. See Section 7 for more detailed explanation of hydraulic, hydrologic, and water 

quality modeling.  

2. Gather additional monitoring data to calibrate the models to gain an accurate understanding of 

the sources of nonpoint source pollution, calculate the target levels, and key locations for 

practices that will achieve the greatest load reductions. 

3. Calculate the load reductions needed to achieve water quality goals in the lake, primarily for total 

phosphorus, total nitrogen, total suspended solids and Chl-a. For Sugar Creek Lake, Missouri Lake 

Ecoregion Nutrient Screening Values will be used as targets for water quality goals. Once referent 

concentrations for each pollutant (total nitrogen, total phosphorus, and solids) are established, 

flow curves from modeling will help determine the annual mass reduction goals needed to 

achieve desired water quality for each water body. 

46

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 12  
 

4. Identify a suite of nonpoint source projects and practices that will achieve the load reductions, 

estimate the necessary resources and develop a conceptual schedule for implementation 

including milestones and a monitoring plan. 

5. Establish specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound metrics including but not 

limited to, monitoring that will be used to report on achievements and guide adjustments to the 

Plan.  

6. Determine milestones that will be used to assess and communicate progress. 

7. Create a robust community education and information campaign to raise awareness of the 

importance of reducing nonpoint source pollution. 

8. Support the network of partners and stakeholders to help develop the Plan and participate in its 

implementation. 

9. Estimate the necessary resources and develop a conceptual schedule for implementation 

including milestones and a monitoring plan. 

4.2 Project Manager and Fiscal Manager 

The following individuals are responsible for project and fiscal management.  

 Rachel Hultz, Water Quality Coordinator (Public Utilities, City of Moberly):  

Rachel will serve as the project manager, who will oversee all aspects of the project, including 

planning and deliverables. She will be the primary point of contact with the MDNR on technical, 

administrative, and financial questions; however, Moberly’s consultant, Barr Engineering (Barr), will 

assist with communications on technical aspects of the project.  

Phone Number: 660-353-9745 

Email (preferred): rachelh@cityofmoberly.com 

 Dana Ulmer, Utilities Director (Public Utilities, City of Moberly):  

Dana will provide general project oversight and direction.  

4.3 Other Sponsoring Agencies 

The City of Moberly is the only sponsoring agency.  

4.4 Travel Expenses 

It is presumed that meetings with MDNR will occur via video conference and that no travel to Jefferson 

City for meetings with MDNR related to this project will be required. Travel expenses may be incurred for 

field sampling by City technical personnel.  

47

#4.

mailto:achelh@cityofmoberly.com


319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 13  
 

4.5 Committee Support 

The Watershed Committee will support this project. Moberly will organize a steering meeting to occur at 

least quarterly. The steering committee will include City of Moberly staff, project sponsors, key 

stakeholders, and the City’s environmental consultant, Barr.  

4.6 Contractors/Consultants 

The City of Moberly has contracted Barr to provide support during planning and implementation of the 

watershed plan.  

The City of Moberly will contract with an analytical laboratory to perform water quality sample analysis 

throughout the water quality monitoring portions of the plan.  

4.7 Partnership Support 

Refer to Section 7 and Table 7-1 for project partnerships.  

4.8 Water Quality Monitoring and Watershed Modeling 

Development of the plan will rely on water quality modeling to determine pollutant loading both from the 

watershed and internally from the lake. Water and sediment sampling maybe used to both build and 

calibrate models.  

Refer to Section 5 for more details.  

4.9 Stakeholder and Public Involvement  

Refer to Section 7 for details on stakeholder and public involvement.  

4.10 Information and Outreach Efforts 

Refer to Section 7 for details on information and outreach efforts. 

4.11 Presentation of Draft and Final Watershed Plans 

Refer to Section 7 for more details.  

4.12  Related Projects or Grant Programs 

Source Water Protection Program. This plan will build upon the objectives of the SWPP. However, that 

project is closed, and no further funding is available for the WBP. 

NWQI. The NWQI is an Environmental Quality Incentives Program sponsored by the Natural Resources 

Conservation Service in Missouri. It is a focused approach to assist landowners in priority watersheds to 

apply selected conservation practices to reduce the flow of sediment, nutrients, and other runoff into 

impaired waterways. (Environmental Quality Incentives Program - MO | Natural Resources Conservation 

Service (usda.gov)). The Sugar Creek-East Fork Little Chariton River in Randolph County (HUC 

48

#4.

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/eqip-environmental-quality-incentives/missouri/environmental-quality
https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/eqip-environmental-quality-incentives/missouri/environmental-quality


319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 14  
 

102802030204) is a NWQI priority watershed for FY23. No funding from the NWQI will contribute to the 

development of the Sugar Creek Lake WBP. However, coordination and sharing of information through 

the Randolph County Soil and Water Conservation District is anticipated.  

Stream Teams. The Missouri Stream Team Program is a partnership between the MDNR, Department of 

Conservation, Conservation Federation of Missouri, and the citizens of Missouri. Stream Team Volunteer 

Water Quality Monitors are trained citizen scientists who monitor stream health in Missouri. Stream Team 

volunteers will play a role in supporting the development of the WBP. 

4.13  Measuring and Evaluating Project Success 

The City has identified two measures of project success.  

Measure of Success #1: A completed WBP that is approved by MDNR and U.S. EPA. This measure will be 

evaluated by receiving approval of the plan-granting agencies with minimal comment or revision 

required.  

Measure of Success #2: An established, engaged, high-functioning stakeholder group representing 

diverse interests that is ready to assist in implementation of the plan. This will be evaluated by a survey of 

the stakeholders at the end of the project to gauge the following factors: 

 Overall satisfaction with the plan 

 Overall satisfaction with the plan development process 

 A shared vision for ongoing water quality improvement by reducing nonpoint source pollution 

 Commitment to ongoing participation in implementation of the plan 

49

#4.

http://www.mostreamteam.org/
https://www.mdc.mo.gov/
https://www.mdc.mo.gov/
https://www.confedmo.org/


319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 15  
 

5 Environmental Data Collection and Modeling 

Narrative 

This section provides the information required by Item 7b of form 780-2123. 

5.1 Scope of Work  

The following scope of work follows U.S. EPA’s nine-element plan approach focusing on in-lake measures 

to restore and protect water quality. The nine minimum elements include:  

 Identify the causes and sources 

 Estimate pollutant loading into the watershed and the expected load reductions 

 Describe management measures that will achieve load reductions and targeted critical areas 

 Estimate the amounts of technical and financial assistance and the relevant authorities needed to 

implement the plan 

 Develop an information/education component 

 Develop a project schedule 

 Develop the interim, measurable milestones 

 Identify indicators to measure progress and make adjustments 

 Develop a monitoring component 

The remaining subsections outline the tasks to address the nine-element plan approach. 

5.2 Task 1: Establish water quality issues and goals for the reservoir.  

The first step in developing a lake management plan for Sugar Creek Lake is to identify the primary issues 

and threats to the lake. Possible threats include excessive nutrient and sediment loading, aquatic invasive 

species (AIS), excessive anoxia, and others. We recognize that the lake is not currently exceeding water 

quality thresholds but may be trending that direction. Barr will work with City staff to identify a list of 

issues and potential threats to water quality in Sugar Creek Lake, including threats to recreational uses 

and water supply. We understand that state water quality standards are available and will be used for 

water quality goals.  

5.3 Task 2: Reservoir characterization and data gaps 

The next step is to describe current conditions in the Sugar Creek reservoir, including physical conditions 

(depth profile, area, volume etc.), water quality, and biological conditions. We will build on work already 

conducted for the Sugar Creek Lake SWPP to describe water quality conditions and better describe factors 

that may result in nuisance algae blooms. Some factors important to consider include: 

50

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 16  
 

 Hydrology and outlet structure  

 Stratification and hypolimnetic water quality 

 Seasonal water quality trends 

 General groundwater conditions  

 Phytoplankton community 

In our preliminary review of available data, several potential data gaps were identified, including:  

 Temperature and dissolved oxygen profiles in the reservoir 

 Hypolimnetic water quality data  

 Aquatic vegetation surveys  

5.4 Task 3: Estimating Nutrient and Sediment Sources to the Reservoir 

Once water quality goals are established for the reservoir, the next step is to estimate nutrient loads from 

the primary sources, including watershed loading; internal loading from sediment release; and other 

sources, including atmospheric deposition, groundwater, and septic systems if they exist in the watershed.  

5.4.1 Task 3a: Watershed Nutrient Loading  

As a part of the SWPP, watershed loading was estimated for phosphorus, nitrogen, and sediment using 

published land use loading rates. While these values are useful for comparison among potential sources, 

some water quality data for validation will improve loading estimates and in-reservoir water quality 

response models.  

5.4.1.1 Watershed Model Development 

Barr will develop a P8 model of the watershed to Sugar Creek Lake to simulate runoff, total suspended 

solids (TSS), total nitrogen (TN), and total phosphorus (TP) loading.  

Hydrologic modeling assumptions will be developed using the following data sources: 

 LiDAR data obtained from the Missouri Spatial Data Information Service dated January 2012 

 2019 NLCD dataset to define the percent impervious area and land cover types 

 Soils data from the NRCS Soil Survey Geographic Database 

Hourly rainfall data will be collected from nearby precipitation gauges to develop annual average runoff 

and pollutant loading over a 10-year period. 

 

51

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 17  
 

Major water quality best management practices (BMPs), ponds, and wetlands within the watershed will be 

included in the model. Hydraulic inputs for these features will be determined using the following data 

sources: 

 As-built plans provided by the City of Moberly 

 City of Moberly’s storm sewer database 

 Topography data to approximate BMP live and dead storage volumes 

 National Wetland Inventory (NWI) to estimate dead storage depths 

Small development-scale BMPs will not be explicitly included in the model. 

5.4.1.2 Watershed Data Collection 

To calibrate the P8 model to site-specific TSS, TN, and TP runoff concentrations, we recommend 

conducting a season of water quality monitoring at two major inflows to the reservoir. Due to funding 

limitations to collect continuous flow data and composite storm samples, we recommend the City collect 

grab samples at up to three locations along tributaries to Sugar Creek Lake. Monitoring points will be 

selected by considering several factors, including size of subbasin, land use, erosivity, and accessibility. 

City staff will be collecting these samples. 

5.4.1.3 Model Calibration and Validation 

TP and TSS concentrations from the lake tributaries will be compared to the runoff concentrations of TP 

and TSS generated in the P8 model during typical rainfall events. Because only a few baseflow grab 

samples will be collected from the watershed, the model will also be calibrated to existing in-lake 

monitoring data. Task 3b involves the collection of sediment cores to understand the amount of internal 

TP loading that occurs within the lake itself. The difference between the total lake TP loading and the 

internal TP loading will provide an approximation of the TP contribution from the watershed. Using the 

grab samples and estimation of watershed loading, runoff inputs and particle assumptions will be 

adjusted to reflect the runoff volume and TP concentration from watershed runoff to the lake. 

5.4.2 Task 3b: Internal Load Estimates.  

To assess internal phosphorus loading to Sugar Creek Lake, sediment phosphorus (P) release and the 

duration of anoxia need to be quantified. Temperature and dissolved oxygen profiles are required to 

determine the extent and duration of anoxia in the reservoir in any given year. However, it is unclear if 

temperature and dissolved oxygen profiles were collected as a part of the reservoir monitoring program. 

After reviewing sediment data collected by the LMVP, we determined additional sediment data are 

needed to quantify potential sediment nutrient loading to the reservoir.  

5.4.2.1 Sediment Chemistry and Phosphorus Release 

Sediment cores will be collected from three lake stations prior to stratification (if possible) using a gravity 

coring device equipped with an acrylic core liner (6.5-cm ID and 50-cm length). To minimize core 

52

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 18  
 

disturbance, cores will be sectioned in the field with sediment sealed in glass jars. Cores collected for 

release rates will be dewatered to the sediment surface, and a core insert applied to each core to hold 

sediment in place during transport. All intact cores will be sealed with stoppers, placed in a carrier with 

ice, and covered with black plastic to prevent light exposure, all critical steps to ensuring accurate testing 

results. Additional lake water will be collected from the lake surface for use in diffusive P flux incubations 

and for alum titrations. Cores from each lake will be transported to the laboratory as soon as possible for 

analysis. 

Lake stations will be precisely located using global positioning system (GPS) technology and depth will be 

recorded at each collection site. A dissolved oxygen, temperature, pH, and conductivity profile will be 

recorded at the time of sampling to determine if the lake is stratified. 

At all the sites, vertical variations in sediment P fractions susceptible to recycling (loosely bound, iron-

bound, and labile organic P) will be examined to determine factors driving sediment P loading. For three 

of the sites, three replicate cores will be incubated in the laboratory to measure sediment P flux under 

anaerobic (anoxic) conditions. The oxidation-reduction environment in the overlying water will be 

controlled by gently bubbling nitrogen (anaerobic) or air (aerobic) through a fine pore size air stone 

placed just above the sediment surface in each system. Water samples for soluble reactive phosphorus 

and total will be analyzed every few days to determine P flux.  

5.4.2.2 Task 3c: Septic system loading  

Septic system phosphorus loading will be estimated using geographical information system (GIS) 

estimates of the number of systems in the watershed and literature values for P delivery. County records 

will be used to estimate the number of older or failing systems as well as new systems installed. 

5.5 Task 4: Develop BATHTUB model 

To determine the response of Sugar Creek Lake to changes in nutrient loading, a BATHUB model will be 

developed for the reservoir. The model will focus on modeling in-lake TP concentrations but will be used 

to estimate Chl-a and nitrogen response as well. The model will be validated using the previous 10 years 

of in-reservoir data.  

5.6 Task 5: Monitoring Recommendations  

Based on the results of the data analysis and modeling, we will develop monitoring recommendations for 

Sugar Creek Lake and watershed. Recommendations will include general monitoring to assess water 

quality conditions, monitoring improvement from BMP installation, and other potential goals. All the 

monitoring recommendations will focus on goals for the reservoir, including water supply, recreation, and 

ecological conditions.  

5.7 Task 6: Reporting  

We will develop a report outlining the results of the modeling, BMP selection and costs estimates.  

 

53

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 19  
 

 

 

54

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 20  
 

6 Planning Deliverables Worksheet 

This section provides the information required by Item 7c of form 780-2123. Table 6-1 mirrors the table 

from the form.  

Table 6-1 Planning Deliverables Worksheet 

Deliverables Associated with Watershed 

Planning Activities 

Responsible 

Party 

Detailed 

Budget Line # 

Deliverable 

Units 

Expected 

Deliverable 

Units to be 

Completed1 

Monitoring Work Plan/Sampling Quality 

Assurance Project Plan (QAPP) 
City of Moberly  1 Y1Q2 

Watershed/Water Quality Modeling QAPP City of Moberly  1 Y1Q3 

Water Quality Monitoring Laboratory 

Reports 
City of Moberly  1 Y3Q1 

H&H Model:  City of Moberly  1 Y1Q4 

 Agendas and notes from virtual 

coordination meetings 
City of Moberly  1 As required 

 Presentation of preliminary model 

results 
City of Moberly  1 Y1Q4 

 GIS files/PCSWMM model files City of Moberly  1 Y1Q4 

 Technical memorandum City of Moberly  1 Y1Q4 

Water Quality Model:  City of Moberly  1 Y2Q1 

 Agendas and notes from virtual 

coordination meetings 
City of Moberly  1 As required 

 GIS files/P8/BATHTUB model files City of Moberly  1 Y2Q1 

 Technical memorandum City of Moberly  1 Y2Q1 

Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Plan DRAFT City of Moberly  1 Y3Q2 

Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Plan FINAL City of Moberly  1 Y3Q4 

Notes:  

1. The expected delivery dates shown are in years (Y) and quarters (Q). For example, Y1Q3 means that the deliverable will be 

provided within the third quarter of the first year of the project period. 

Commented [LPC1]: In progress - the City plans to align 
deliverable dates and include budget line. 

55

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 21  
 

7 Information and Outreach Narrative 

This section provides the information required by Item 8a of form 780-2123. 

Moberly is planning information and outreach activities that will educate stakeholders on the 

development of the Sugar Creek Lake WBP.  

Moberly understands that the successful long-term implementation of the WBP requires knowledgeable, 

committed stakeholders who have an interest in accomplishing the goals of the plan. An informed and 

supportive general public is also key to future success. Moberly has considered the following groups in 

developing its information and outreach strategy: 

 Partners. These are entities that will contribute in-kind match to the grant through their 

participation in the planning process. This can include field work, information gathering, 

document review, and planning meetings. 

 Watershed Committee. The Watershed Committee will be a focused group of ten to twelve 

individuals who can meet on a regular basis to help the Project Manager with the overall planning 

and development. Moberly envisions that the Watershed Committee would meet roughly on a 

quarterly basis.  

 Stakeholders. Stakeholders will be those entities with expertise and interest in the WBP whose 

input will be sought at key points in the planning process. For example, stakeholder input would 

be important for reviewing modeling and sampling plans, assessing modeling results, and 

reviewing and commenting on the detailed public information and outreach plan. Moberly has a 

list of about fifty stakeholders who have expressed an interest in being involved in future water 

quality issues. 

Based on these groups, Moberly has identified organizations and individuals as key participants as part of 

its Plan development. Table 7-1 lists project partners and Table 7-2 lists watershed committee members.

56

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 22  
 

Table 7-1 Partners 

Partners Contact Name, if applicable 

Contact Phone 

Number and/or 

Email Address 

Role and/or Responsibility 

Moberly City Council Tim Brubaker, Mayor 660-269-8705 
The City Council will play an important role in providing resources 

and direction for the project.  

Moberly Public Utilities – 

Water Services 

Dana Ulmer, Public Utilities 

Director 
660-269-8705 

Moberly water services staff will play a key role developing the 

plan to reduce nutrients in Sugar Creek Lake, which is City’s 

drinking water source.  

Moberly Public Works Dept 
Tom Sanders, Public Works 

Director 

 

660-269-5705 

 

The Public Works staff will play an important role in the design 

and implementation of infrastructure to address nonpoint source 

pollution. 

University Extension Master 

Gardener Program 
Gaylene Meyers  660-651-0405 BMP conceptual design assistance (plants) 

Stream Team 

Luke Kirkendoll, Moberly High 

School biology teacher 

Kim Dickerson, Stream Team 

Coordinator 

660-676-1636 

 

573-864-8014 

Water quality monitoring 

 

Table 7-2 Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Committee  

The Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Committee will play an active role in determining the direction and content of the plan. 

Partners Contact Name, if applicable 

Contact Phone 

Number and/or Email 

Address 

Role and/or Responsibility 

Missouri Department of 

Conservation 

Sam Kosark: Community and 

Private Lands Forester 

 660-263-1160 ext 

3105 

MDC has completed Watershed and Inventory Assessments on 

the Chariton River Watershed (includes the Sugar Creek Lake 

Watershed). 

57

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 23  
 

Partners Contact Name, if applicable 

Contact Phone 

Number and/or Email 

Address 

Role and/or Responsibility 

Moberly Community 

Betterment (Chamber of 

Commerce) 

Michelle Greenweld, Moberly 

Community Betterment 

(Chamber of Commerce):  

660-263-6070  Stakeholder/Advisor representing business 

Randolph County Soil and 

Water Conservation District 
John Kirchhoff 660-263-5702  Stakeholder with federal agricultural resources  

Stream Teams 
Kim Dickerson, Stream Team 

Coordinator 

660-676-1636 

 

573-864-8014 

 Stream Team Stakeholder 

University Extension 4-H Lyann Ritter 660-385-2173  Natural resource expertise 

University Extension of 

Randolph County 
Randolph County Main Office:  660-269-9656  Natural resource expertise 

USDA Natural Resource 

Conservation Service 
Clinton L Roby (660) 263-1169 

The NRCS has many programs for agricultural landowners to 

assist in reducing nonpoint source pollution.  

Mark Twain Regional Council Cindy Hultz 573-565-2203  Stakeholder with regional perspective 

Lakes of Missouri Volunteer 

Program 
Tony Thorpe, LMVP coordinator 

800-895-2260, 

tony@lmvp.org 
LMVP has been a partner in monitoring Sugar Creek Lake 

Missouri DNR Soil and Water 

Conservation Program 
Jim Plassmeyer 573-751-4932 

Cost-share practices funding from the department play a key 

role in reducing sediment and nutrient pollution. 

Missouri DNR Water 

Protection Program 
NPS staff 573-751-1300 

Program input will be important for many aspects of planning, 

including establishing water quality goals for the watershed. 

Missouri Land Reclamation 

Program 
 Larry Lehman  573-751-4041 

The program will be consulted on addressing nonpoint source 

pollution from abandoned mine lands.  

Private landowners  Tom Hall THall@ORSCHELN.com 

Private landowners are important to planning and 

implementation of efforts to reduce nonpoint source pollution. 

Identifying landowners who will participate in planning as a 

stakeholder will be one of the tasks of the planning process.  

 

58

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 24  
 

Moberly will develop a strategy, with help from these partners, for education and outreach. There will be 

regular stakeholder engagement meetings (at least quarterly) throughout the development of the 

watershed plan. During these sessions, Moberly will solicit input on how to carry out the dissemination of 

information and outreach to the various stakeholder groups and the general public.  

Once goals have been established, Moberly and its partners will encourage participation from 

governmental departments; private businesses, such as developers and contractors; citizens of Moberly 

and the surrounding communities within the watershed; neighboring farmers; and the general public in 

educational training sessions, information meetings, and workshops for watershed improvement project 

planning. Ultimately, information and outreach will lead to improved stormwater pollution control 

practices and changes to other activities that impact the watershed.  

Several activities should be considered when developing information and outreach plans. These include, 

but are not limited to: 

 Social media, news outlets, and radio announcements: Moberly will use social media and city 

or local news source websites, and local radio stations to inform stakeholders and the general 

public about stormwater pollution and its impacts on water quality, aquatic life, and wildlife 

habitat. These public service announcements will include references to additional resources that 

stakeholders can review for more information. Internet and social media outlets will include:  

o Moberly Facebook page 

o Moberly City website – Stormwater page and Water Services page  

o Randolph County Soil and Water Conservation District website 

o Centralmoinfo.com 

 Educational opportunities:  

o Moberly City Council – The team will make three presentations to the Moberly City 

Council to provide basic information on nonpoint source pollution and watershed-based 

planning, and report on progress in developing the WBP. 

o Public events – The Moberly area hosts several annual events for which an informational 

booth will be an effective point of contact and information about nonpoint source 

reduction. These include: 

 Master Gardener Plant Sale (May) 

 Junk Junction (September) 

o Engage local schools and participate in guest lectures on the importance of 

environmental pollution control. Up to 2 per year, (5-6 total) 

o Moberly will host informational session(s) with developers, contractors, and others 

involved in property development and management to inform them of proper erosion 

59

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 25  
 

control and the use of best management practices to prevent runoff of polluted 

stormwater. Up to three over the grant period.  

o Furthermore, there may be opportunities to host presentations for the general public that 

will provide an overview of watershed, the fate and transport of pollutants in stormwater 

and other surface water discharges, the impacts of pollution, and practical measures that 

everyone can take to reduce their footprint (such as using less lawn fertilizer and cleaning 

up yard clippings).  

 Farmer-specific information sessions and outreach: There is a significant amount of farmland 

within the Sugar Creek Lake watershed. Moberly plans to invite an expert(s), such as a 

representative from the University of Missouri Extension or the Soil and Water Conservation 

District, to one outreach session during the project period to provide information and resources 

to farmers. Information may include the benefits of riparian buffers; proper use of pesticides, 

insecticides, herbicides, and fertilizers; no-till practices; and other land management practices that 

will reduce pollutant runoff and soil erosion. Moberly can also distribute agricultural information 

related to pollution control at public events.  

 Watershed/Stream cleanup events: Moberly can host watershed and stream cleanup events 

within the Sugar Creek Lake/Sugar Creek watershed. During the events, Moberly can educate the 

volunteers on anthropogenic impacts on watershed and water quality. This will also expose the 

volunteers to the natural spaces that Moberly is trying to protect with this plan so that they can 

share the desire for implementing sustainable practices that will further protect the watershed. 

Moberly estimates the use of approximately 100 hours of volunteer service per year in the Sugar 

Creek Lake watershed and approximately 8 hours per year for one city staff member to plan and 

organize an event. It should be noted that many of the existing cleanup efforts have been focused 

on easily accessible areas of the watershed, such as along roadways. The cleanups events planned 

as part of this grant proposal will be similar in scope. 

 Distribution of Draft and Final Plan: After the draft WBP plan has been developed, including 

information and outreach goals and objectives, Moberly will present drafts to the Sugar Creek 

Lake Watershed Committee for review and comment. Once this group has reviewed, staff will 

provide the plan to the City Council and offer a presentation at public meeting of the Council. 

There may be other information materials, such as brochures and information from other 

stakeholders or agencies, made available for attendees to take and review. The broader 

stakeholder group and the general public will have the opportunity to review the plan as well. The 

Moberly city website will be used to announce the availability of the plan for review.  

Information and outreach goals and objectives may be revised based on feedback received during 

the town hall meeting(s). This will only improve the approach Moberly will take to engage 

stakeholders and the general public.  

60

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 26  
 

8 Project Specific Information and Outreach 

Deliverables Worksheet 

This section provides the information required by Item 8b of form 780-2123. Table 8-1 mirrors the table in 

the form. 

61

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 27  
 

Table 8-1 Information and Outreach Deliverables 

Information and Outreach Deliverables Responsible Party 

Federal 

Award 

Cost $ 

Detailed Budget 

Line # 
# of Units to be Completed 

Deliverable 

Units 

Radio Spots City of Moberly   4 4 

Website updates City of Moberly   12 12 

Facebook updates City of Moberly   12 12 

Postings to Centralmoinfo.com City of Moberly   4 4 

Booths at Community Events (one booth 

may provide farm-oriented information) 
City of Moberly   4 4 

Presentations at City Council City of Moberly   4 4 

Presentations to Business and Farm Interests 

(likely 3 business-oriented events and 1 

farm-oriented event) 

City of Moberly 

  4 4 

Email updates to stakeholders City of Moberly   12 12 

General public meetings City of Moberly   1 1 

Brochures City of Moberly   1  

Newspaper Articles City of Moberly   3 3 

 

62

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 28  
 

9 Schedule of Milestones 

This section provides the information required by Item 10 of form 780-2123. Table 9-1 mirrors the table in 

the form. 

63

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 29  
 

Table 9-1 Schedule of Milestones 

Goal Description of Objectives/Tasks Mark the Year (Y) and Quarter (Q) the Task is to be Completed with an “x” 

1 Required Reporting 
Y1 

Q1 

Y1 

Q2 

Y1 

Q3 

Y1 

Q4 

Y2 

Q1 

Y2 

Q2 

Y2 

Q3 

Y2 

Q4 

Y3 

Q1 

Y3 

Q2 

Y3 

Q3 

Y3 

Q4 

 Quarterly progress reports x x x x x x x x x x x x 

 Quarterly invoices x x x x x x x x x x x x 

 
Annual progress report and MBE/WBE form (due by 

October 15) 
   x    x    x 

 Annual single audit documentation    x    x    x 

 Annual FFATA submission     x    x    

 
Final project report (draft due 30 days prior to project 

end date) 
           x 

2 Project Management 
Y1 

Q1 

Y1 

Q2 

Y1 

Q3 

Y1 

Q4 

Y2 

Q1 

Y2 

Q2 

Y2 

Q3 

Y2 

Q4 

Y3 

Q1 

Y3 

Q2 

Y3 

Q3 

Y3 

Q4 

 Grant orientation activities with MDNR x            

 Annual project meeting with MDNR    x    x    x 

 Quarterly internal status meetings x x x x x x x x x x x x 

3 Watershed Based Plan Development 
Y1 

Q1 

Y1 

Q2 

Y1 

Q3 

Y1 

Q4 

Y2 

Q1 

Y2 

Q2 

Y2 

Q3 

Y2 

Q4 

Y3 

Q1 

Y3 

Q2 

Y3 

Q3 

Y3 

Q4 

 Sugar Creek Lake Watershed Committee meetings   x x x x x x x x x x 

 Public/ broader stakeholder meetings      x     x  

 Completion of plan elements:            x 

Commented [LPC2]: In progress - the City plans to re-
review this once the budget is finalized.  

64

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 30  
 

Goal Description of Objectives/Tasks Mark the Year (Y) and Quarter (Q) the Task is to be Completed with an “x” 

 Elements A, B, C         x  x  

 Elements D, E         x  x  

 Elements F, G         x  x  

 Elements H, I         x  x  

 
Submit first draft of WBP to MDNR for review (at least 10 

months before project end date) 
        x  x  

 
Submit second draft of WBP to MoDNR for review (at 

least six months before project end date) 
         x   

 
Submit final draft of WBP to MDNR 

(at least three months before project end date) 
          x  

 Distribute finalized WBP            x 

4 Information and Outreach Activities 
Y1 

Q1 

Y1 

Q2 

Y1 

Q3 

Y1 

Q4 

Y2 

Q1 

Y2 

Q2 

Y2 

Q3 

Y2 

Q4 

Y3 

Q1 

Y3 

Q2 

Y3 

Q3 

Y3 

Q4 

 
Brochures/ one static display/publications/website/social 

media 
 x x x x x x x x x x x 

 
Business/service org/education/council mtg 

presentations 
  x  x  x  x  x  

 Centralmoinfo.com (social media and radio)    x   x   x  x 

 

Public events (2 booth events per year. Junk Junction 

(Sept) and Master Gardeners Plant Sale (May). Need to 

review this before finalizing. 

x  x  x  x  x  x  

5 Monitoring and Modeling Activities 
Y1 

Q1 

Y1 

Q2 

Y1 

Q3 

Y1 

Q4 

Y2 

Q1 

Y2 

Q2 

Y2 

Q3 

Y2 

Q4 

Y3 

Q1 

Y3 

Q2 

Y3 

Q3 

Y3 

Q4 

65

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 31  
 

Goal Description of Objectives/Tasks Mark the Year (Y) and Quarter (Q) the Task is to be Completed with an “x” 

 Monitoring work plan/sampling QAPP  x           

 Watershed/water quality modeling QAPP  x           

 Establish water quality issues and goals  x           

 Coordination meetings  x  x  x  x     

 Water quality monitoring x x x x x x x x x x x x 

 Watershed H&H model:      x       

 Develop P8 model     x x x x      

 Calibrate with water quality monitoring data    x x x x      

 Lake water quality model:    x x x x      

 Nutrient and sediment internal load estimates    x x x x      

 Develop BATHTUB model    x x x x      

 Future monitoring recommendations        x     

 Reporting        x     

 

 

66

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 32  
 

10 Sponsoring Agency – Personnel Roster Worksheets 

This section provides the information required by Item 10b of form 780-2123. Table 10-1 mirrors the table in the form. (To be completed as part of 

final budget) 

Table 10-1 Sponsoring Agency – Personnel Roster Worksheet 

Employee Title 

Number 

of 

Hours 

Hourly 

Wage 

Total 

Salary 

Costs 

Hourly 

Fringe 

Rate 

Total 

Fringe 

Cost 

Administrative 

Duties  

(Yes or No) 

Role/Description of Tasks and 

Responsibilities 

Rachel Hultz      No Project Manager 

Dana Ulmer      Yes General oversight and admin 

Tom Sanders      Yes Technical support 

Emily Lute      No Technical support 

Steve Wilson      No Technical support 

Les Untiedt      No Lake monitoring 

Matt Everts      No Lake monitoring/lab 

Staff 1      No Field sampling/watershed 

Staff 2      No Field sampling/watershed 

        

        

        

        

Commented [LPC3]: In progress - the City is still finalizing 
the roster for implementation.  

67

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 33  
 

Employee Title 

Number 

of 

Hours 

Hourly 

Wage 

Total 

Salary 

Costs 

Hourly 

Fringe 

Rate 

Total 

Fringe 

Cost 

Administrative 

Duties  

(Yes or No) 

Role/Description of Tasks and 

Responsibilities 

        

  

68

#4.



319 Grant Application DRAFT for Informal Agency Review.  

 

 

 34  
 

11 References 

1. U.S. Census Bureau. Moberly city, Missouri. QuickFacts. [Online] U.S. Census Bureau, April 1, 2020. 

[Cited: May 11, 2023.] https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/moberlycitymissouri. 

2. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. EJScreen: Environmental Justice Screening and Mapping Tool. 

EPA. [Online] U.S. EPA, January 30, 2023. https://www.epa.gov/ejscreen. 

3. Water Protection Program. Missouri Integrated Water Quality Report and Section 303(d) List, 2020; 

Clean Water Act Section 303(d), 305(b), and 314. Jefferson City: Missouri Department of Natural Resources, 

2020. 

4. Natural Resources Conservation Service. National Water Quality Initiative. Programs & Initiatives. 

[Online] U.S. Department of Agriculture, 2023. [Cited: May 30, 2023.] 

https://www.nrcs.usda.gov/programs-initiatives/national-water-quality-initiative. 

5. Missouri Department of Conservation. Missouri's Northern Plains. Missouri Conservationist Magazine. 

October 2005. 

6. Decker, Wayne L. Climate of Missouri. s.l.: University of Missouri, Missouri Climate Center. 

7. National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration. Data Tools: 1981-2010 Normals. [Online] [Cited: 

May 3, 2019.] https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/cdo-web/datatools/normals. 

8. U.S. Climate Data. Climate Moberly - Missouri and Weather averages Moberly. Temperature - 

Precipitation - Sunshine - Snowfall. [Online] 2019. [Cited: May 3, 2019.] 

https://www.usclimatedata.com/climate/moberly/missouri/united-states/usmo0595. 

9. Midwestern Regional Climate Center. Precipitation Summary for Station USC00235671 - Moberly, 

MO. Midwest Climate: Climate Summaries. [Online] 2019. [Cited: May 16, 2019.] 

https://mrcc.illinois.edu/mw_climate/climateSummaries/climSummOut_pcpn.jsp?stnId=USC00235671. 

10. Gentile, Richard and Thompson, Thomas. Paleozoic Succession in Missouri Part 5: Pennsylvanian 

Subsystem. Report of Investigations No. 70. s.l.: Missouri Department of Natural Resources; Missouri 

Geological Survey, 2004. 

11. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Onsite Wastewater Treatment Systems Manual. February 

2002. EPA/625/R-00/008. 

 

69

#4.



 

 

Create Flysheets after verifying figures and attachments 

70

#4.



 

City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration  

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item:     An Ordinance Repealing Section 2-3 Of The City Code And Adopting A New 

Section 2-3 Pertaining To The City Flag. 
  

Summary: In 2022, a citizen presented the City with the idea of replacing the City’s flag 

with a more appropriate flag.  The City asked Moberly Community Betterment 

to hold a contest for a new flag.  After the contest concluded, Moberly 

Community Betterment scored and ranked the flags for presentation to the 

City Council.  Included in the packet is the flag requested for a new City flag 

approved by Moberly Community Betterment including the other entries 

  

Recommended 

Action:   Approve this ordinance.  

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report   x     Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

71

#5.



 

 

 BILL NO: _____________ 
   

 
ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING SECTION 2-3 OF THE CITY CODE AND ADOPTING  

A NEW SECTION 2-3 PERTAINING TO THE CITY FLAG. 

 
WHEREAS,  Moberly Community Betterment (“MCB”) was asked by the City to hold a 

contest for a new City flag; and 
 

WHEREAS, many flag designs were submitted for consideration which were scored and 
ranked by MCB with the following flag design selected for use; and 

 
 
                                                               
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

WHEREAS, City staff recommends that the pictured flag be approved by the City Council 
and that Sec. 2-3 of the City Code be repealed and adopted to so provide. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 
 

 SECTION ONE:  Section 2-3.-City Flag is hereby repealed.  
 
 SECTION TWO: Chapter 2, Article I, Section 2-3 is hereby adopted to read as 
follows: 
 

Sec.  2-3.- City Flag. 

(a) An official flag is adopted for the City.  The design of the flag is as shown on the 
ordinance from which this section is derived. 

(b) The stylized M ties to Moberly and nods at our state, Missouri.  The shape M is a series 
of line intersections, just like Moberly’s major corridors Highway 24 & 63 that 
facilitate easy access to our community.  The M is widened to represent our future 
growth and continued progress.  Interpretive rail tracks are included to remind us of the 
importance rail has played in the development of our City.  The section of track leads 
us to progress while connecting our past to our future. 

(c) The design of the flag represents the following: 
(1) The five stars represent Moberly’s historic connection to General Omar Bradley but 

also to a goal of being ranked the best. 
(2) The color blue represents our City’s historic use of blue in their branding efforts as 

well as trust, loyalty, and stability.  The attributes we strive to uphold as a City. 
 

72

#5.



 
 
 
 

(3) The color yellow represents Moberly’s agricultural background as well as 
Moberly’s optimistic outlook on our future. 

(4) The color white represents unity and goodness.  It is used to balance the design but 
also to represent Moberly’s goal of uniting together to support Moberly first. 

 
SECTION THREE:  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and adoption by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, and its signature by the 
officer presiding at the meeting at which it was passed and adopted. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 7th 

day of August, 2023. 

       ____________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

 

____________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  

 

73

#5.



Moberly Community Betterment is recommending this drawing as 
the new City of Moberly Flag.

April 25, 2023

Design Description:  The stylized M ties to Moberly and nods at our state, 

Missouri. The shape M is a series of line intersections, just like Moberly’s major 

corridors highway 24 & 63 that facilitate easy access to our community. The M is 

widened to represent our future growth and continued progress. 

The interpretive rail tracks are included to remind us of the importance rail has 

played in the development of our city. The section of track included in this 

design is leading us to progress while connecting our past to our future. 

The Five Stars are included to highlight Moberly’s historic connection to General 

Omar Bradley but also to a goal of being ranked the best. 

The color blue represents our city’s historic use of blue in their branding efforts 

as well as trust, loyalty, and stability. The attributes we strive to uphold as a city. 

The color yellow represents Moberly’s agricultural background as well as 

Moberly’s optimistic outlook on our future. 

The color white represents unity and goodness. It is used to balance the design 

but also to represent Moberly’s goal of uniting together to support Moberly 

first.

To be noted, this Flag was designed to be readable from both the front and 

back.
74

#5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Missouri 

Highways And Transportation Commission Governor’s Transportation Cost 

Share Agreement. 

  

Summary: Attached is the agreement with Missouri Highway and Transportation 

Commission Governor’s Cost Share Agreement.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this Ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other       Passed Failed 

 

75

#6.



 

 

 BILL NO:_____________ 
   

 
ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION GOVERNOR’S 

TRANSPORTATION COST SHARE AGREEMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, on February 6, 2023, this Council adopted Resolution R1394 accepting an 
award from the Governor’s Transportation Cost Share Program for funding of Moberly 
Industrial Park Street Extensions of McKeown Street west to the future intersection with 
Robertson Road and Fowler Road west to Buchanan Street; and 
 

WHEREAS, the State has forwarded its cost share agreement (Project # SNS007) to 
provide funding of approximately fifty percent of the construction budget or approximately 
$550,000.00; and 
 

WHEREAS,  attached hereto is a certain Missouri Highway and Transportation 
Commission Governor’s Transportation Cost Share Agreement for approval by the City 
Council and ratification of signatures already contained thereon. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE: That the City hereby accepts and approves the Missouri Highways 
and Transportation Commission Governor’s Transportation Cost Share Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) attached hereto. 
 
 SECTION TWO: That the signature of City Manager, Brian Crane, thereon is hereby 
ratified on behalf of the City of Moberly and he is further authorized to take such other and 
further action as may be required to effectuate the purpose of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon passage by the 
City Council.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 7th day 

of August, 2023. 

 

       ____________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

_______________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  

76

#6.



77

#6.



78

#6.



79

#6.



80

#6.



81

#6.



82

#6.



83

#6.



84

#6.



85

#6.



86

#6.



87

#6.



88

#6.



89

#6.



90

#6.



91

#6.



92

#6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial 

Assistance Award With Terms And Conditions For Wabash Heights 

Stormwater Improvements. 

  

Summary: This agreement is for $139,000 of the total $5M project for preliminary 

engineering work to determine the best path forward to resolve the stormwater 

issues in Wabash Heights, or the area between Robertson Rd & the RR tracks 

and Hwy 24 and Sparks Ave. 

 

There are numerous factors to consider as most of the area does not have 

sanitary sewer and our goal is to take stormwater out of the area.  We will 

have to determine what locations have sewer, and which ones are capable of 

accessing sewer and how we will address the ones that can’t/won’t. 

 

The City match for this total project is $1.   

 

Staff recommends approval. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this ordinance. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report   x    Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other       Passed Failed 

 

93

#7.



 

 

 BILL NO: _____________ 
   

 
ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD WITH TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR 
WABASH HEIGHTS STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS. 

 

WHEREAS, on July 5, 2022, this Council adopted Resolution No. R1297 authorizing City 
staff to seek grant assistance with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial 
Assistance Center’s State AROA Grant Programs for subaward of federal financial assistance 
to complete improvements to Wabash Heights Stormwater project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has now received a Financial Assistance Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) along with a separate document entitled “Terms and Conditions for Grantee 
Receipt of Federal ARPA Funds” (the “Terms”) which must be executed by the City Manager; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, attached hereto are the Agreement and Terms which staff requests be 
approved by the City Council.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 
 SECTION ONE: That the City hereby accepts and approves the Agreement and Terms 
attached hereto. 
 
 SECTION TWO: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the 
Agreement and Terms on behalf of the City of Moberly, and he is further authorized to take 
such other and further action as may be required to effectuate the purpose of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon passage by the 
City Council.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 7th day 

of August, 2023. 

 

       __________________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

   __________________________________ 

   Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  
 

94

#7.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR GRANTEE 
RECEIPT OF FEDERAL ARPA SFRF FUNDS 

I. Use of Funds: City of Moberly  (“Grantee”) understands and agrees that the
funds disbursed under this grant may only be used in compliance with section
602(c) of the Social Security Act (“Act”), as added by Section 9901 of the American
Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”), Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 2021), 135 Stat. 4, 223–26, and
the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”)’s regulations implementing that section
and guidance, and in compliance with all other restrictions and specifications on use set forth
in or applicable through this agreement. Grantee will determine prior to engaging in any project
using this assistance that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to
ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the project.

Period of Performance: The period of performance for this award begins on the date hereof 
and ends on [7-31-2025]. Grantee may use funds granted under this agreement to cover eligible  
costs incurred during the period of performance, but no later than [7-31-2025]. 

Reporting: Grantee agrees to comply with any reporting obligations established by 
Treasury or the State of Missouri (“State”), as it relates to this grant. Those reporting obligations 
shall include, without limitation, the following: reporting that is necessary for the State to comply 
with the Treasury’s Project and Expenditure Report User Guide for State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds, Version: 2, dated April 1, 2022 and any later versions of that publication.1  

Maintenance of and Access to Records: Grantee shall maintain records and financial 
documents sufficient to evidence compliance with section 602(c) of the Act and Treasury’s 
regulations implementing that section and guidance regarding the eligible uses of funds. Grantee 
shall also maintain records and financial documents: 1. sufficient for the State, with respect to 
Grantee’s participation in this grant agreement, to evidence compliance with section 602(c) of the 
Act and Treasury’s regulations implementing that section and guidance regarding the eligible uses 
of funds; and 2. necessary for the State, with respect to Grantee’s participation in this grant 
agreement, to comply with obligations under 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and any other applicable law. For 
subrecipients, Grantee shall further maintain all records and financial documents necessary for: 1. 
Grantee to comply with obligations as a subrecipient under 2 C.F.R. Part 200; and 2. the State to 
comply with obligations as a pass-through entity under 2 C.F.R. Part 200. The Treasury Office of 
Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office, their authorized representatives, the 
State, or its authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to records and documents 
(electronic and otherwise) of Grantee in order to conduct audits or other investigations or reviews.2 

1 For subrecipients, in the case of an additional reporting requirement imposed by the State under 
2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(3), this agreement shall be amended. 

2 For subrecipients, the State’s right of access in this paragraph includes, but is not limited to, the 
right set forth at 2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(5) that “the pass-through entity and auditors [shall] have 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

95

#7.

nrprins
Highlight

nrprins
Highlight

nrdorsm
Cross-Out



Records shall be maintained by Grantee for a period of five (5) years after all funds have been 
expended or returned to the State, whichever is later. Wherever practicable, records should be 
collected, transmitted, and stored in open and machine-readable formats. Grantee’s obligations 
under this section shall include, without limitation, maintenance of the following specified types 
of records and financial documents: documents that are necessary for the State to comply with the 
Treasury’s Project and Expenditure Report User Guide for State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 
Version: 2, dated April 1, 2022 and any later versions of that publication.3 

Pre-award Costs: Pre-award costs, as defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.458, may not be paid with 
funding from this grant. 

Conflicts of Interest: For subrecipients only, Grantee understands and agrees that it must 
maintain a conflict of interest policy consistent with 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) and that such conflict 
of interest policy is applicable to each activity funded under this grant. Grantee must disclose in 
writing to Treasury or the State, as appropriate, any potential conflict of interest affecting the 
granted funds in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112. 

Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulations: Grantee agrees to comply with the 
requirements of section 602 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to section 602(f) 
of the Act, guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing, and all other restrictions and 
specifications set forth in or applicable through this agreement. Grantee also agrees to comply with 
all other applicable state and federal statutes, regulations, and executive orders, and Grantee shall 
provide for such compliance by other parties in any agreements it enters into with other parties 
relating to this grant. 

Federal regulations applicable to this grant include, without limitation, the following: 

i. For subrecipients only, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury 
may determine are inapplicable to this grant and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise 
provided by Treasury. Excepting for-profit subrecipients, Subpart F – Audit Requirements of 
Uniform Guidance, implementing the Single Audit Act, shall apply to this grant; 

ii. For subrecipients only, Universal Identifier and System for Award Management
(“SAM”), 2 C.F.R. Part 25, pursuant to which the award term set forth at Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. 
Part 25 is hereby incorporated by reference; 

iii. For subrecipients only, Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information,
2 C.F.R. Part 170, pursuant to which the award term set forth at Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. Part 170 
is hereby incorporated by reference; 

access to the subrecipient’s records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through 
entity to meet the requirements of this part.” 

3 For subrecipients, in the case of an additional record-keeping requirement imposed by the State 
under 2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(3), this agreement shall be amended. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

96

#7.



iv. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement), 2 C.F.R. Part 180, and Treasury’s implementing regulation at 31 C.F.R. Part 
19, including both the requirement to comply with that part’s Subpart C as a condition of 
participation in this transaction, and the requirement to pass the requirement to comply with that 
subpart to each person with whom the participant enters into a covered transaction at the next lower 
tier; 

v. Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, pursuant to which the award term set forth
at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, is hereby incorporated by reference; 

vi. For subrecipients only, Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31
C.F.R. Part 20;

vii. For subrecipients only, New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 C.F.R. Part 21;

viii. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C.
§§ 4601–4655) and implementing regulations; and

ix. Generally applicable federal environmental laws and regulations.

Federal statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination applicable to this grant include, 
without limitation, the following: 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; 

ii. the Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.) which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
sex, familial status, or disability; 

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving federal 
financial assistance; 

iv. the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.) and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and 

v. For subrecipients and local governments only, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local 
governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto. 

Remedial Actions: The State reserves the right to impose additional conditions or 
requirements on Grantee’s receipt of this grant, as the State deems necessary or advisable, in order 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

97

#7.



to facilitate compliance with any existing or additional conditions or requirements imposed upon 
the State by Treasury for the State’s receipt of ARPA funds. The State also reserves the right to 
seek recoupment or repayment of this grant in whole or in part, in the event that Treasury seeks 
recoupment or repayment of payments made to the State, for reasons relating to Grantee’s acts or 
omissions respecting this grant. These reservations are expressed without limitation to any other 
rights the State may hold, either to impose additional conditions or requirements on Grantee’s 
receipt of this grant or to recoup this grant in whole or in part, under this agreement or other 
applicable law. 

Hatch Act: Grantee agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch Act (5 
U.S.C. §§ 1501–1508 and 7324–7328), which limit certain political activities of State or local 
government employees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in 
whole or in part by this federal assistance. 

False Statements: Grantee understands that making false statements or claims in connection 
with this award is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal, civil, or administrative 
sanctions, including fines, imprisonment, civil damages and penalties, debarment from 
participating in federal awards or contracts, and/or any other remedy available by law. 

Publications: Any publications produced with funds from this grant must display the 
following language: “This product [is being] [was] supported, in whole or in part, by federal award 
number [enter project FAIN] awarded to State of Missouri by the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury.” 

Debts Owed State and Federal Government: Any funds paid to Grantee (1) in excess of the 
amount to which Grantee is finally determined to be authorized to retain under the terms of this 
grant; (2) that are determined by the Treasury Office of Inspector General to have been misused; 
or (3) that are determined by Treasury to be subject to a repayment obligation pursuant to sections 
602(e) and 603(b)(2)(D) of the Act and have not been repaid by Grantee shall constitute a debt 
owed by the State to the federal government. In such instance, the funds constituting the State’s 
debt to the federal government shall also constitute Grantee’s debt to the State. Debts owed by 
Grantee to the State must be paid promptly by Grantee. A debt owed the State by Grantee under 
this agreement is delinquent if it has not been paid by the date specified in the State’s initial demand 
for payment, unless other satisfactory arrangements have been made or if Grantee knowingly or 
improperly retains funds that are a debt as defined in this paragraph. The State will take any actions 
available to it to collect such a debt, including but not limited to actions available to it under the 
“Remedial Actions” paragraph found in this same section (I) above. The rights of the State as 
expressed in this paragraph are in addition to, and do not imply the exclusion of, any other rights 
the State may have under applicable law to collect a debt or seek damages from Grantee. 

Disclaimer: In its award of federal financial assistance to the State, Treasury provides that 
the United States expressly disclaims any and all responsibility or liability to the State or third 
persons for the actions of the State or third persons resulting in death, bodily injury, property 
damages, or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any other 
losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any contract or subcontract 
under this award. Furthermore, in its award of federal financial assistance to the State, Treasury 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

98

#7.



also states that the acceptance of this award by the State does not in any way establish an agency 
relationship between the United States and the State. This disclaimer applies with equal force to 
this grant. 

Protections for Whistleblowers: For grants to subrecipients exceeding $250,000: In 
accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Grantee may not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate 
against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided 
below, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of 
a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal 
contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, 
rule, or regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a 
contract) or grant. The list of persons and entities referenced in the statement above includes the 
following: 

i. a member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress;

ii. an Inspector General;

iii. the Government Accountability Office;

iv. a Treasury employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management;

v. an authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency;

vi. a court or grand jury;

vii. a management official or other employee of the State or Grantee who has the
responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct. 

Grantee shall inform its employees in writing of the rights and remedies provided under this 
section, in the predominant native language of the workforce. 

Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States: Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 
19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Grantee should encourage its contractors to adopt and enforce on-the-job 
seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented or 
personally owned vehicles. 

Reducing Text Messaging While Driving: Pursuant to federal Executive Order 13513, 74 
FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), the State hereby encourages Grantee to adopt and enforce policies that 
ban text messaging while driving.4 

II. By entering into this agreement, Grantee ensures its current and future compliance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation,

4 Section I is based on requirements set forth in Treasury’s Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery 
Fund Award Terms and Conditions document, executed by the State on July 26, 2021. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

99

#7.



denial of the benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving 
federal funds, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national origin 
(42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by Treasury Title VI regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22 
and other pertinent executive orders such as federal Executive Order 13166; directives; circulars; 
policies; memoranda and/or guidance documents. 

Grantee acknowledges that federal Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services 
for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally assisted 
programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited English 
Proficiency (“LEP”). Grantee understands that denying a person access to its programs, services, 
and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination prohibited under Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Treasury’s implementing regulations. Accordingly, Grantee 
shall initiate reasonable steps, or comply with Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons 
have meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. Grantee understands and agrees 
that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 
interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 
Grantee’s programs, services, and activities. 

Grantee agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons during 
development of applicable budgets and when conducting programs, services, and activities. As a 
resource, Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 6067. For more information on LEP, 
please visit http://www.lep.gov. 

Grantee acknowledges and agrees that compliance with this assurance constitutes a 
condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon Grantee and 
Grantee’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in which such assistance is 
provided. 

Grantee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 
recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 
benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 
origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 
regulations, 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in 
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 
implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations 31 C.F.R. Part 22, and 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement. 

Grantee shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review activities by Treasury or 
the State of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may include investigation, arbitration, 
mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement agreements that may result from these 
actions. That is, Grantee shall comply with information requests, on-site compliance review, and 
reporting requirements. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

100

#7.



Grantee shall maintain and provide to applicants, beneficiaries, their representatives, or any 
other party requesting the same, information on how to file a Title VI complaint of discrimination 
with the State of Missouri. 

Grantee shall provide to the State documentation of an administrative agency’s or court’s 
findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, including any 
voluntary compliance or other agreements between Grantee and the administrative agency that 
makes any such finding. If Grantee settles a case or matter alleging such discrimination, Grantee 
must provide to the State documentation of the settlement. If Grantee has not been the subject of 
any court or administrative agency finding of discrimination, Grantee shall so state. 

The United States of America has the right to seek judicial enforcement of the terms of this 
assurances section and nothing in this section alters or limits the federal enforcement measures 
that the United States may take in order to address violations of this section or applicable federal 
law. 

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned certifies that he/she has read and understood this 
section’s obligations as herein described, that any information submitted in conjunction with this 
assurance document is accurate and complete, and that Grantee is in compliance with the 
aforementioned nondiscrimination requirements. 

By signing this certification, the undersigned represents his or her intention, and legal 
authorization, to do so on behalf of Grantee.5 

Date: 
Signature of Grantee’s Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

**********THE SECTIONS BELOW APPLY ONLY TO SUBRECIPIENTS********** 

III. This grant to City of Moberly  (“Grantee”) constitutes a subaward6 of 
federal financial assistance7 provided to the State of Missouri (“State”) by the 
U.S. Department of Treasury.
5 Section II is based on requirements set forth in Treasury’s Assurance of Compliance with Civil 

Rights Requirements document, executed by the State on July 26, 2021. 

6 “Subaward” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

7 “Federal financial assistance” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

101

#7.



the Treasury (“Treasury”) pursuant to Section 602(b) of the Social Security Act (“Act”), as added 
by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”), Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 2021), 
135 Stat. 4, 223–26. Grantee is a subrecipient8 and the State is a pass-through entity9 for purposes 
of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards set forth at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. The following is provided to Grantee pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.332(a)(1):

• Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with its unique entity 
identifier): City of Moberly

• Subrecipient's unique entity identifier: ZFDYKNHMPTK9

• Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 073134579

• Federal Award Date of award to the recipient by the Federal agency: 07/28/2021

• Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date: 8-01-2023 to 7-31-2025

• Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date: 8-01-2023 to 7-31-2025

• Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action by the pass-through entity to the 
subrecipient: 139,924.00

• Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient by the pass-through entity 
including the current financial obligation: 139,924.00

• Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the subrecipient by the pass-through 
entity:139,924.00

• Federal award project description: ARPA appropriated $195.3 billion for payments from 
the Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund (“SFRF”) to states through Treasury. Act § 
602(a)(3)(A), ARPA § 9901, 135 Stat. 4, 224. Those monies are for states “to mitigate the 
fiscal effects stemming from the public health emergency with respect to [COVID-19].” 
Act § 602(a)(1), ARPA § 9901, 135 Stat. 4, 223. The State has received more than $2.6 
billion in ARPA SFRF funds, separate from local government allocations. In accordance 
with the budget passed by the Missouri legislature, the State intends that these funds be 
utilized for the purposes set forth in ARPA, consistent with other applicable federal law. 
As part of this effort, the State has elected to distribute a portion of its SFRF funding to 
appropriate subrecipients.

8 “Subrecipient” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

9 “Pass-through entity” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

102

#7.



• Name of Federal awarding agency: U.S. Department of Treasury.

• Name of pass-through entity: State of Missouri.

• Contact information for awarding official of pass-through entity:
o Name: Maria Dorsey
o Phone Number: 573-522-2395
o Email Address: Maria.Dorsey@dnr.mo.gov

• Assistance Listings number and Title (pass-through entity must identify the dollar amount
made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number at time of
disbursement): 21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

• Identification of whether the award is R & D: No

• Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged) per §
200.414: 0.0%

IV. For grants exceeding $100,000:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form–LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance
with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

103

#7.



fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

By signing this certification, the undersigned represents his or her intention, and legal 
authorization, to do so on behalf of Grantee.10 

Date: 
Signature of Grantee’s Authorized Representative 

Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

V. In addition to the other authorities identified in this agreement, Grantee must comply with
2 C.F.R. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). The Uniform Guidance is an extensive
body of federal rules, and so will not be recited here comprehensively. However, Grantee must
perform this agreement in compliance with the entirety of the Uniform Guidance, not just
the provisions discussed in this section.11 

Beyond its definitions and acronym identifications (Subpart A), the Uniform Guidance 
contains five subparts. Subpart B, “General Provisions,” includes a statement of purpose (which 
provides a general outline of the Part), 2 C.F.R. § 200.100, a provision on conflicts of interest (see 
Section III above), 2 C.F.R. § 200.112, and a provision on mandatory disclosures, 2 C.F.R. § 
200.113. Subpart D, “Post Federal Award Requirements,” itself covers a range of topics. 2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.302 requires, inter alia, that “financial management systems . . . must be sufficient to permit
the preparation of reports required by general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the
tracing of funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used
according to the Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.”
Id. at (a). 2 C.F.R. § 200.303 requires, inter alia, “[e]valuat[ion] and monitor[ing]” of “compliance
with statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of Federal awards,” as well as the
“[t]ak[ing] [of] prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including
noncompliance identified in audit findings.” Id. at (c) and (d), respectively. Subpart D also includes
“Property Standards.” 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.310–.327. These sections address Grantee’s interaction

10 Section II is based on requirements set forth at 31 C.F.R. Part 21. Appendix A of that part sets 
forth this certification. 

11 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F does not apply to for-profit entities. However, “[f]or-profit entities 
that receive SLFRF subawards . . .  are subject to other audits as deemed necessary by authorized 
governmental entities, including Treasury and Treasury’s [Office of Inspector General].” 
Treasury’s Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 
published February 28, 2022 (Version 3.0), p.12, n.7. Such other audits may be imposed by the 
State. Id. See also 2 C.F.R. § 200.501.  For-profit subrecipients shall comply with any audit 
requirements imposed by the State. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

104

#7.



with equipment and real property, as well as providing standards for procurement. 2 C.F.R. § 
200.329 addresses the monitoring and reporting of program performance. Beginning at 2 C.F.R. § 
200.334, Subpart D lists numerous requirements for “Record Retention and Access,” which should 
be read in concert with the several terms and conditions of this agreement. Subpart E, “Cost 
Principles,” begins with provisions providing a basic framework for understanding and applying 
the bulk of these requirements. See 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.400 and .401. Subpart E includes a rule on 
“Reasonable Costs,” 2 C.F.R. § 200.404, which provides a definitional authority as well as primary 
factors for consideration. Id. This subpart also provides a considerable listing of “Selected Items 
of Cost,” and “General Provisions” for each. 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.420–.476. Subpart F is dedicated to 
the topic of audits. See 2 C.F.R. § 200.500 et seq. With certain qualifications, subrecipients are 
subject to audit pursuant to the federal Single Audit Act and this subpart of the Uniform Guidance. 
See n.12 above, and the authorities there cited. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award #D083E3E22938

105

#7.



106

#7.



107

#7.



108

#7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial Assistance 

Award With Terms And Conditions For Seven Bridges Stormwater Improvements. 
 

  

Summary:   The City of Moberly received approval for $1,169,000 of stormwater grant funding 

for improvements to the Seven Bridges CSO as part of an overall effort to reduce 

combined sewer flows leaving the collection system and allowing the system to fully 

treat those flows at the City Of Moberly WWTP. This is an opportunity to receive 

nearly 90% funding up to $1,069,000 towards the project estimated in 2022 dollars, to 

cost $1,169,000. This Financial Assistance Agreement allows Moberly to receive the 

grant funding. 

 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the Ordinance 

  

Fund Name: Public Utilities Operations—Stormwater Department 

  

Account Number: 301.115.5406 

  

Available Budget $: To be transferred from operating reserve fund. (Reimbursable through ARPA 

Grant.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report    x   Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
  x   Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other        Passed Failed 

 

109

#8.



 

 

 BILL NO: __________________ 
   

 

ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AWARD WITH TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SEVEN 

BRIDGES STORMWATER IMPROVEMENTS. 
 

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2022, this Council adopted Resolution R1284 authorizing City 
staff to seek grant assistance with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources, Financial 
Assistance Center’s State ARPA Grant Programs for subaward of federal financial assistance to 
complete improvements to the Seven Bridges Stormwater project; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City has now received a Financial Assistance Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) along with a separate document entitled “Terms and Conditions for Grantee 
Receipt of Federal ARPA Funds” (the “Terms”) which must be executed by the City Manager; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, attached hereto are the Agreement and Terms which staff requests be 
approved by the City Council.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE: That the City hereby accepts and approves the Agreement and Terms 
attached hereto. 
 
 SECTION TWO: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the 
Agreement and Terms on behalf of the City of Moberly, and he is further authorized to take 
such other and further action as may be required to effectuate the purpose of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon passage by the 
City Council.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 7th day of 

August, 2023. 

 

       __________________________________ 

Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

   __________________________________ 

   Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk  

 

110

#8.



TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR GRANTEE 
RECEIPT OF FEDERAL ARPA SFRF FUNDS 

I. Use of Funds: City of Moberly  (“Grantee”) understands and agrees that the
funds disbursed under this grant may only be used in compliance with section
602(c) of the Social Security Act (“Act”), as added by Section 9901 of the American
Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”), Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 2021), 135 Stat. 4, 223–26, and
the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”)’s regulations implementing that section
and guidance, and in compliance with all other restrictions and specifications on use set forth
in or applicable through this agreement. Grantee will determine prior to engaging in any project
using this assistance that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability to
ensure proper planning, management, and completion of the project.

Period of Performance: The period of performance for this award begins on the date hereof 
and ends on [7-14-2025]. Grantee may use funds granted under this agreement to cover eligible  
costs incurred during the period of performance, but no later than [7-14 -2025]. 

Reporting: Grantee agrees to comply with any reporting obligations established by 
Treasury or the State of Missouri (“State”), as it relates to this grant. Those reporting obligations 
shall include, without limitation, the following: reporting that is necessary for the State to comply 
with the Treasury’s Project and Expenditure Report User Guide for State and Local Fiscal 
Recovery Funds, Version: 2, dated April 1, 2022 and any later versions of that publication.1  

Maintenance of and Access to Records: Grantee shall maintain records and financial 
documents sufficient to evidence compliance with section 602(c) of the Act and Treasury’s 
regulations implementing that section and guidance regarding the eligible uses of funds. Grantee 
shall also maintain records and financial documents: 1. sufficient for the State, with respect to 
Grantee’s participation in this grant agreement, to evidence compliance with section 602(c) of the 
Act and Treasury’s regulations implementing that section and guidance regarding the eligible uses 
of funds; and 2. necessary for the State, with respect to Grantee’s participation in this grant 
agreement, to comply with obligations under 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and any other applicable law. For 
subrecipients, Grantee shall further maintain all records and financial documents necessary for: 1. 
Grantee to comply with obligations as a subrecipient under 2 C.F.R. Part 200; and 2. the State to 
comply with obligations as a pass-through entity under 2 C.F.R. Part 200. The Treasury Office of 
Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office, their authorized representatives, the 
State, or its authorized representatives, shall have the right of access to records and documents 
(electronic and otherwise) of Grantee in order to conduct audits or other investigations or reviews.2 

1 For subrecipients, in the case of an additional reporting requirement imposed by the State under 
2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(3), this agreement shall be amended. 

2 For subrecipients, the State’s right of access in this paragraph includes, but is not limited to, the 
right set forth at 2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(5) that “the pass-through entity and auditors [shall] have 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

111

#8.

nrprins
Highlight

nrprins
Highlight

nrdorsm
Cross-Out



Records shall be maintained by Grantee for a period of five (5) years after all funds have been 
expended or returned to the State, whichever is later. Wherever practicable, records should be 
collected, transmitted, and stored in open and machine-readable formats. Grantee’s obligations 
under this section shall include, without limitation, maintenance of the following specified types 
of records and financial documents: documents that are necessary for the State to comply with the 
Treasury’s Project and Expenditure Report User Guide for State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 
Version: 2, dated April 1, 2022 and any later versions of that publication.3 

Pre-award Costs: Pre-award costs, as defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.458, may not be paid with 
funding from this grant. 

Conflicts of Interest: For subrecipients only, Grantee understands and agrees that it must 
maintain a conflict of interest policy consistent with 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c) and that such conflict 
of interest policy is applicable to each activity funded under this grant. Grantee must disclose in 
writing to Treasury or the State, as appropriate, any potential conflict of interest affecting the 
granted funds in accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.112. 

Compliance with Applicable Law and Regulations: Grantee agrees to comply with the 
requirements of section 602 of the Act, regulations adopted by Treasury pursuant to section 602(f) 
of the Act, guidance issued by Treasury regarding the foregoing, and all other restrictions and 
specifications set forth in or applicable through this agreement. Grantee also agrees to comply with 
all other applicable state and federal statutes, regulations, and executive orders, and Grantee shall 
provide for such compliance by other parties in any agreements it enters into with other parties 
relating to this grant. 

Federal regulations applicable to this grant include, without limitation, the following: 

i. For subrecipients only, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, other than such provisions as Treasury 
may determine are inapplicable to this grant and subject to such exceptions as may be otherwise 
provided by Treasury. Excepting for-profit subrecipients, Subpart F – Audit Requirements of 
Uniform Guidance, implementing the Single Audit Act, shall apply to this grant; 

ii. For subrecipients only, Universal Identifier and System for Award Management
(“SAM”), 2 C.F.R. Part 25, pursuant to which the award term set forth at Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. 
Part 25 is hereby incorporated by reference; 

iii. For subrecipients only, Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information,
2 C.F.R. Part 170, pursuant to which the award term set forth at Appendix A to 2 C.F.R. Part 170 
is hereby incorporated by reference; 

access to the subrecipient’s records and financial statements as necessary for the pass-through 
entity to meet the requirements of this part.” 

3 For subrecipients, in the case of an additional record-keeping requirement imposed by the State 
under 2 C.F.R. § 200.332(a)(3), this agreement shall be amended. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

112

#8.



iv. OMB Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension
(Nonprocurement), 2 C.F.R. Part 180, and Treasury’s implementing regulation at 31 C.F.R. Part 
19, including both the requirement to comply with that part’s Subpart C as a condition of 
participation in this transaction, and the requirement to pass the requirement to comply with that 
subpart to each person with whom the participant enters into a covered transaction at the next lower 
tier; 

v. Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters, pursuant to which the award term set forth
at 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix XII, is hereby incorporated by reference; 

vi. For subrecipients only, Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace, 31
C.F.R. Part 20;

vii. For subrecipients only, New Restrictions on Lobbying, 31 C.F.R. Part 21;

viii. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C.
§§ 4601–4655) and implementing regulations; and

ix. Generally applicable federal environmental laws and regulations.

Federal statutes and regulations prohibiting discrimination applicable to this grant include, 
without limitation, the following: 

i. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and Treasury’s
implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, or national origin under programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; 

ii. the Fair Housing Act, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et
seq.) which prohibits discrimination in housing on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, 
sex, familial status, or disability; 

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794), which
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability under any program or activity receiving federal 
financial assistance; 

iv. the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101 et seq.) and
Treasury’s implementing regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 23, which prohibit discrimination on the 
basis of age in programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; and 

v. For subrecipients and local governments only, Title II of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis 
of disability under programs, activities, and services provided or made available by state and local 
governments or instrumentalities or agencies thereto. 

Remedial Actions: The State reserves the right to impose additional conditions or 
requirements on Grantee’s receipt of this grant, as the State deems necessary or advisable, in order 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

113

#8.



to facilitate compliance with any existing or additional conditions or requirements imposed upon 
the State by Treasury for the State’s receipt of ARPA funds. The State also reserves the right to 
seek recoupment or repayment of this grant in whole or in part, in the event that Treasury seeks 
recoupment or repayment of payments made to the State, for reasons relating to Grantee’s acts or 
omissions respecting this grant. These reservations are expressed without limitation to any other 
rights the State may hold, either to impose additional conditions or requirements on Grantee’s 
receipt of this grant or to recoup this grant in whole or in part, under this agreement or other 
applicable law. 

Hatch Act: Grantee agrees to comply, as applicable, with requirements of the Hatch Act (5 
U.S.C. §§ 1501–1508 and 7324–7328), which limit certain political activities of State or local 
government employees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in 
whole or in part by this federal assistance. 

False Statements: Grantee understands that making false statements or claims in connection 
with this award is a violation of federal law and may result in criminal, civil, or administrative 
sanctions, including fines, imprisonment, civil damages and penalties, debarment from 
participating in federal awards or contracts, and/or any other remedy available by law. 

Publications: Any publications produced with funds from this grant must display the 
following language: “This product [is being] [was] supported, in whole or in part, by federal award 
number [enter project FAIN] awarded to State of Missouri by the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury.” 

Debts Owed State and Federal Government: Any funds paid to Grantee (1) in excess of the 
amount to which Grantee is finally determined to be authorized to retain under the terms of this 
grant; (2) that are determined by the Treasury Office of Inspector General to have been misused; 
or (3) that are determined by Treasury to be subject to a repayment obligation pursuant to sections 
602(e) and 603(b)(2)(D) of the Act and have not been repaid by Grantee shall constitute a debt 
owed by the State to the federal government. In such instance, the funds constituting the State’s 
debt to the federal government shall also constitute Grantee’s debt to the State. Debts owed by 
Grantee to the State must be paid promptly by Grantee. A debt owed the State by Grantee under 
this agreement is delinquent if it has not been paid by the date specified in the State’s initial demand 
for payment, unless other satisfactory arrangements have been made or if Grantee knowingly or 
improperly retains funds that are a debt as defined in this paragraph. The State will take any actions 
available to it to collect such a debt, including but not limited to actions available to it under the 
“Remedial Actions” paragraph found in this same section (I) above. The rights of the State as 
expressed in this paragraph are in addition to, and do not imply the exclusion of, any other rights 
the State may have under applicable law to collect a debt or seek damages from Grantee. 

Disclaimer: In its award of federal financial assistance to the State, Treasury provides that 
the United States expressly disclaims any and all responsibility or liability to the State or third 
persons for the actions of the State or third persons resulting in death, bodily injury, property 
damages, or any other losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any other 
losses resulting in any way from the performance of this award or any contract or subcontract 
under this award. Furthermore, in its award of federal financial assistance to the State, Treasury 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

114

#8.



also states that the acceptance of this award by the State does not in any way establish an agency 
relationship between the United States and the State. This disclaimer applies with equal force to 
this grant. 

Protections for Whistleblowers: For grants to subrecipients exceeding $250,000: In 
accordance with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, Grantee may not discharge, demote, or otherwise discriminate 
against an employee in reprisal for disclosing to any of the list of persons or entities provided 
below, information that the employee reasonably believes is evidence of gross mismanagement of 
a federal contract or grant, a gross waste of federal funds, an abuse of authority relating to a federal 
contract or grant, a substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a violation of law, 
rule, or regulation related to a federal contract (including the competition for or negotiation of a 
contract) or grant. The list of persons and entities referenced in the statement above includes the 
following: 

i. a member of Congress or a representative of a committee of Congress;

ii. an Inspector General;

iii. the Government Accountability Office;

iv. a Treasury employee responsible for contract or grant oversight or management;

v. an authorized official of the Department of Justice or other law enforcement agency;

vi. a court or grand jury;

vii. a management official or other employee of the State or Grantee who has the
responsibility to investigate, discover, or address misconduct. 

Grantee shall inform its employees in writing of the rights and remedies provided under this 
section, in the predominant native language of the workforce. 

Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States: Pursuant to Executive Order 13043, 62 FR 
19217 (Apr. 18, 1997), Grantee should encourage its contractors to adopt and enforce on-the-job 
seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented or 
personally owned vehicles. 

Reducing Text Messaging While Driving: Pursuant to federal Executive Order 13513, 74 
FR 51225 (Oct. 6, 2009), the State hereby encourages Grantee to adopt and enforce policies that 
ban text messaging while driving.4 

II. By entering into this agreement, Grantee ensures its current and future compliance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits exclusion from participation,

4 Section I is based on requirements set forth in Treasury’s Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery 
Fund Award Terms and Conditions document, executed by the State on July 26, 2021. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

115

#8.



denial of the benefits of, or subjection to discrimination under programs and activities receiving 
federal funds, of any person in the United States on the ground of race, color, or national origin 
(42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by Treasury Title VI regulations at 31 C.F.R. Part 22 
and other pertinent executive orders such as federal Executive Order 13166; directives; circulars; 
policies; memoranda and/or guidance documents. 

Grantee acknowledges that federal Executive Order 13166, “Improving Access to Services 
for Persons with Limited English Proficiency,” seeks to improve access to federally assisted 
programs and activities for individuals who, because of national origin, have Limited English 
Proficiency (“LEP”). Grantee understands that denying a person access to its programs, services, 
and activities because of LEP is a form of national origin discrimination prohibited under Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Treasury’s implementing regulations. Accordingly, Grantee 
shall initiate reasonable steps, or comply with Treasury’s directives, to ensure that LEP persons 
have meaningful access to its programs, services, and activities. Grantee understands and agrees 
that meaningful access may entail providing language assistance services, including oral 
interpretation and written translation where necessary, to ensure effective communication in 
Grantee’s programs, services, and activities. 

Grantee agrees to consider the need for language services for LEP persons during 
development of applicable budgets and when conducting programs, services, and activities. As a 
resource, Treasury has published its LEP guidance at 70 FR 6067. For more information on LEP, 
please visit http://www.lep.gov. 

Grantee acknowledges and agrees that compliance with this assurance constitutes a 
condition of continued receipt of federal financial assistance and is binding upon Grantee and 
Grantee’s successors, transferees, and assignees for the period in which such assistance is 
provided. 

Grantee shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits 
recipients of federal financial assistance from excluding from a program or activity, denying 
benefits of, or otherwise discriminating against a person on the basis of race, color, or national 
origin (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), as implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI 
regulations, 31 C.F.R. Part 22, which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of 
this agreement. Title VI also includes protection to persons with “Limited English Proficiency” in 
any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., as 
implemented by the Department of the Treasury’s Title VI regulations 31 C.F.R. Part 22, and 
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this agreement. 

Grantee shall cooperate in any enforcement or compliance review activities by Treasury or 
the State of the aforementioned obligations. Enforcement may include investigation, arbitration, 
mediation, litigation, and monitoring of any settlement agreements that may result from these 
actions. That is, Grantee shall comply with information requests, on-site compliance review, and 
reporting requirements. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

116

#8.



Grantee shall maintain and provide to applicants, beneficiaries, their representatives, or any 
other party requesting the same, information on how to file a Title VI complaint of discrimination 
with the State of Missouri. 

Grantee shall provide to the State documentation of an administrative agency’s or court’s 
findings of non-compliance of Title VI and efforts to address the non-compliance, including any 
voluntary compliance or other agreements between Grantee and the administrative agency that 
makes any such finding. If Grantee settles a case or matter alleging such discrimination, Grantee 
must provide to the State documentation of the settlement. If Grantee has not been the subject of 
any court or administrative agency finding of discrimination, Grantee shall so state. 

The United States of America has the right to seek judicial enforcement of the terms of this 
assurances section and nothing in this section alters or limits the federal enforcement measures 
that the United States may take in order to address violations of this section or applicable federal 
law. 

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned certifies that he/she has read and understood this 
section’s obligations as herein described, that any information submitted in conjunction with this 
assurance document is accurate and complete, and that Grantee is in compliance with the 
aforementioned nondiscrimination requirements. 

By signing this certification, the undersigned represents his or her intention, and legal 
authorization, to do so on behalf of Grantee.5 

Date: 
Signature of Grantee’s Authorized Representative 

________________________________________ 
Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

**********THE SECTIONS BELOW APPLY ONLY TO SUBRECIPIENTS********** 

III. This grant to City of Moberly  (“Grantee”) constitutes a subaward6 of
federal financial assistance7 provided to the State of Missouri (“State”) by the
U.S. Department of Treasury.
5 Section II is based on requirements set forth in Treasury’s Assurance of Compliance with Civil 

Rights Requirements document, executed by the State on July 26, 2021. 

6 “Subaward” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

7 “Federal financial assistance” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

117

#8.



the Treasury (“Treasury”) pursuant to Section 602(b) of the Social Security Act (“Act”), as added 
by Section 9901 of the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”), Pub. L. No. 117-2 (March 11, 2021), 
135 Stat. 4, 223–26. Grantee is a subrecipient8 and the State is a pass-through entity9 for purposes 
of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards set forth at 2 C.F.R. Part 200. The following is provided to Grantee pursuant to 2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.332(a)(1):

• Subrecipient name (which must match the name associated with its unique entity 
identifier): City of Moberly

• Subrecipient's unique entity identifier: ZFDYKNHMPTK9

• Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN): 073134579

• Federal Award Date of award to the recipient by the Federal agency: 07/28/2021

• Subaward Period of Performance Start and End Date: 7-15-2023 to 7-14-2025

• Subaward Budget Period Start and End Date: 7-15-2023 to 7-14-2025

• Amount of Federal Funds Obligated by this action by the pass-through entity to the 
subrecipient:165,890.30

• Total Amount of Federal Funds Obligated to the subrecipient by the pass-through entity 
including the current financial obligation:165,890.30

• Total Amount of the Federal Award committed to the subrecipient by the pass-through 
entity:165,890.30

• Federal award project description: ARPA appropriated $195.3 billion for payments from 
the Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund (“SFRF”) to states through Treasury. Act § 
602(a)(3)(A), ARPA § 9901, 135 Stat. 4, 224. Those monies are for states “to mitigate the 
fiscal effects stemming from the public health emergency with respect to [COVID-19].” 
Act § 602(a)(1), ARPA § 9901, 135 Stat. 4, 223. The State has received more than $2.6 
billion in ARPA SFRF funds, separate from local government allocations. In accordance 
with the budget passed by the Missouri legislature, the State intends that these funds be 
utilized for the purposes set forth in ARPA, consistent with other applicable federal law. 
As part of this effort, the State has elected to distribute a portion of its SFRF funding to 
appropriate subrecipients.

8 “Subrecipient” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

9 “Pass-through entity” is defined at 2 C.F.R. § 200.1. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

118

#8.



• Name of Federal awarding agency: U.S. Department of Treasury.

• Name of pass-through entity: State of Missouri.

• Contact information for awarding official of pass-through entity:
o Name: Maria Dorsey
o Phone Number: 573-522-2395
o Email Address: Maria.Dorsey@dnr.mo.gov

• Assistance Listings number and Title (pass-through entity must identify the dollar amount
made available under each Federal award and the Assistance Listings Number at time of
disbursement): 21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

• Identification of whether the award is R & D: No

• Indirect cost rate for the Federal award (including if the de minimis rate is charged) per §
200.414: 0.0%

IV. For grants exceeding $100,000:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member
of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form–LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance
with its instructions.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under
grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

119

#8.



fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and 
not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

By signing this certification, the undersigned represents his or her intention, and legal 
authorization, to do so on behalf of Grantee.10 

Date: 
Signature of Grantee’s Authorized Representative 

Printed Name of Authorized Representative 

V. In addition to the other authorities identified in this agreement, Grantee must comply with
2 C.F.R. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”). The Uniform Guidance is an extensive
body of federal rules, and so will not be recited here comprehensively. However, Grantee must
perform this agreement in compliance with the entirety of the Uniform Guidance, not just
the provisions discussed in this section.11 

Beyond its definitions and acronym identifications (Subpart A), the Uniform Guidance 
contains five subparts. Subpart B, “General Provisions,” includes a statement of purpose (which 
provides a general outline of the Part), 2 C.F.R. § 200.100, a provision on conflicts of interest (see 
Section III above), 2 C.F.R. § 200.112, and a provision on mandatory disclosures, 2 C.F.R. § 
200.113. Subpart D, “Post Federal Award Requirements,” itself covers a range of topics. 2 C.F.R. 
§ 200.302 requires, inter alia, that “financial management systems . . . must be sufficient to permit
the preparation of reports required by general and program-specific terms and conditions; and the
tracing of funds to a level of expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have been used
according to the Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal award.”
Id. at (a). 2 C.F.R. § 200.303 requires, inter alia, “[e]valuat[ion] and monitor[ing]” of “compliance
with statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of Federal awards,” as well as the
“[t]ak[ing] [of] prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including
noncompliance identified in audit findings.” Id. at (c) and (d), respectively. Subpart D also includes
“Property Standards.” 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.310–.327. These sections address Grantee’s interaction

10 Section II is based on requirements set forth at 31 C.F.R. Part 21. Appendix A of that part sets 
forth this certification. 

11 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F does not apply to for-profit entities. However, “[f]or-profit entities 
that receive SLFRF subawards . . .  are subject to other audits as deemed necessary by authorized 
governmental entities, including Treasury and Treasury’s [Office of Inspector General].” 
Treasury’s Compliance and Reporting Guidance: State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds, 
published February 28, 2022 (Version 3.0), p.12, n.7. Such other audits may be imposed by the 
State. Id. See also 2 C.F.R. § 200.501.  For-profit subrecipients shall comply with any audit 
requirements imposed by the State. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

120

#8.



with equipment and real property, as well as providing standards for procurement. 2 C.F.R. § 
200.329 addresses the monitoring and reporting of program performance. Beginning at 2 C.F.R. § 
200.334, Subpart D lists numerous requirements for “Record Retention and Access,” which should 
be read in concert with the several terms and conditions of this agreement. Subpart E, “Cost 
Principles,” begins with provisions providing a basic framework for understanding and applying 
the bulk of these requirements. See 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.400 and .401. Subpart E includes a rule on 
“Reasonable Costs,” 2 C.F.R. § 200.404, which provides a definitional authority as well as primary 
factors for consideration. Id. This subpart also provides a considerable listing of “Selected Items 
of Cost,” and “General Provisions” for each. 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.420–.476. Subpart F is dedicated to 
the topic of audits. See 2 C.F.R. § 200.500 et seq. With certain qualifications, subrecipients are 
subject to audit pursuant to the federal Single Audit Act and this subpart of the Uniform Guidance. 
See n.12 above, and the authorities there cited. 

Attachment 1 to FAA Award # DF67F243F43C 

121

#8.



122

#8.



123

#8.



124

#8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Purch. & Personnel 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Recording The Destruction Of Certain Local Government 

Records. 
 

 

 

Summary:   The City of Moberly’s Purchasing and Personnel Department has determined 

certain records no longer have administrative, legal, fiscal, research or 

historical value and these records are listed in the Missouri Records Manual 

and the minimum retention period has been exceeded.  It is recommended that 

the City Council adopt the resolution to allow staff to commence with the 

destruction per established guidelines.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve the resolution and direct staff to proceed with destruction of records. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
       Correspondence   X    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Jeffrey     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Lucas     
        Consultant Report  X    Other  Exhibit A       Passed Failed 

 

125

#9.



BILL NO._________      RESOLUTION NO._________  

 

A RESOLUTION RECORDING THE DESTRUCTION OF CERTAIN LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT RECORDS. 

 

WHEREAS, Section 109.255 RSMo. authorizes the Local Records Board to establish 

minimum retention periods for local government records; and 

WHEREAS, the following records have reached their minimum retention period and 

may be legally destroyed: See the attached records list for the Purchasing and Personnel 

department; and 

WHEREAS, the listed records shall be destroyed by shredding. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the destruction of said records is hereby authorized and approved 

in all respects. 

RESOLVED this 7th day of August 2023, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

        

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Shannon Hance, MRCC, City Clerk 

126

#9.



127

#9.



128

#9.



129

#9.



130

#9.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Clerk 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

  

Summary: Through the course of regular City operations, debts to various vendors and 

agencies are incurred.  The majority are charged to the City through invoices, 

other debts are incurred through contractual arrangements for services, 

financing of purchases, and long-term debt.  This resolution approves payment 

of two types of items; (1) those with due dates within the next two weeks, and 

(2) for payments that have been made for items with due dates that occurred 

since the previous appropriation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Recommended 

Action: Approve this resolution. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget : N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
    _     Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    

    _     Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     

       Correspondence    X   Proposed Resolution   
    Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes    _    Contract M  S  Jeffrey     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Kimmons     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

131

#10.



132

#10.



133

#10.



134

#10.



135

#10.



136

#10.



137

#10.



138

#10.



139

#10.



140

#10.



141

#10.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: Consideration Of A Motion To Move The September 4, 2023, City Council 

Meeting To September 5, 2023. 

  

Summary: City Hall will be closed September 4, in observation of Labor Day.  We ask 

that the City Council meeting be held the following day, September 5, 2023, at 

6:00 p.m., per historical procedures. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Motion, second and vote. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
      Correspondence   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Lucas     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Kyser     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Jeffrey     
  Consultant Report   Other         Passed Failed 

 

142

#11.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Administration 

Date: August 7, 2023 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Proposal From The Tourism Advisory Commission. 

  

Summary: At the June 13, 2023, Moberly Tourism Commission meeting the following 

proposal was reviewed and recommended for approval by the Commission. 

 

A proposal from Randolph County Community Education for the Craft Fair. 

They are requesting $888 for social media marketing, radio ads, banners, and 

flyers. After a brief discussion, the board made a motion to approve this 

sponsorship for $300 for increasing the marketing to outside a 40-mile radius. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Approve this proposal. 

  

Fund Name: Non-Resident Lodging Tax Fund 

  

Account Number: 102.000.5502 

  

Available Budget $: 1,500.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Brubaker     
   x    Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Lucas     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Jeffrey     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

143

#12.



144

#12.



145

#12.



146

#12.



147

#12.



148

#12.



149

#12.



150

#12.



Minutes of Meeting 

Tourism Advisory Committee 

June 13, 2023 

9:00 AM 
 
The Tourism Advisory Commission for the City of Moberly met in a regular session on Tuesday, June 

13, 2023 at 9 :00 a.m. in the Conference Room at City Hall. The meeting was called to order by 

Chairman, Tom Sanders.  

 

Members Present:         Janie Riley  

 Ryan Blackwell  

 Jonique Barnett 

 

City Staff Attending:       Tom Sanders, Dir. Of Comm. Dev.  

 Shirley Olney, Executive Assistant 

       

Members Absent: John Kimmons-City Council liaison  

 

Visitors:  Michelle Westhues 

 Sarah Graff 

 Mark Fischer 

 

Tom Sanders opened the meeting at 9:00 AM. One member was absent from the meeting.   

 

The minutes from the May 9, 2023, meeting was reviewed. Tom Sanders asked if there were any 

corrections.  Janie Riley made a motion to approve these minutes as presented. Ryan Blackwell 

seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Sanders asked if there was any new business.  There being none for discussion moved onto the 

next item on the agenda. 

 

Mr. Sanders moved to first item under old business “Review of Proposals”.   Michelle Westhues noted 

that one proposal was received from Betty Mayo- Randolph County Randolph County Family & 

Community Education.  After a brief discussion on this event the board approved fund of only $300 

that would go towards her increasing advertising on Facebook/Instagram marketing only to reach more 

people out of town and target outside a 40 miles radius.   Mr. Blackwell made a motion to approve.  

Ms. Riley seconded the motion.  All was in favor. 

 

Mr. Sanders moved to the second item on the agenda “Update from Moberly Chamber of Commerce 

on Tourism Activities”.   Ms. Westhues presented to the board the May report for social media stats.     

 

Mr. Sanders moved to the third item on the agenda “information on Account Balance of the Lodging 

Tax”.   Mr. Sander review the amount of funds in the two accounts with the board.  

 

Tom Sanders asked if there was anything else to be brought before the Commission.  Mr. Fischer noted 

that the Missouri Film Festival Bureau will be in Moberly on September 9th to tour the town for 

locations of filming.  Ms. Graff stated that at the last meeting she mentioned the Omar Bradley 

museum, and was wondering if there was any updates or any new information.  Mr. Sanders will get 

with Mr. Crane this matter. Mr. Sanders asked if there was anything further. There being no other 

business Ryan Blackwell made a motion to adjourn.  Janie Riley seconded the motion to adjourn.  

Meeting adjourned. 

 

Next meeting schedule for July 11, 2023. 

151

#12.


	Top
	#1.	Approval Of The City Council Meeting Minutes For July 17, 2023.
	2023-07-17 Minutes for Approval
	2023-07-17 Council Meeting-DRAFT

	#2.	A Resolution Authorizing A Salary Adjustment For Certain City Employees For The 2023/2024 Fiscal Year.
	pay scale
	2023 Salary Adjustment Resolution
	Pay Scale as of July 1 2023

	#3.	A Resolution Approving Design Recommendations From Arcturis, Inc., For Wayfinding Signage.
	Wayfinding Signage Design Res Summary Sheet
	Wayfinding Resolution
	230614 Moberly Wayfinding SD

	#4.	A Resolution Approving An Application for 319 Grant Funding Through Missouri Department of Natural Resources.
	319 Grant Application summary
	Section 319 Grant Funding Resolution
	319 Grant elements
	FigureA_Moberly SWMP Watershed Map
	Moberly_319Grant_AppReport_DRAFT for Agency Review

	#5.	An Ordinance Repealing Section 2-3 Of The City Code And Adopting A New Section 2-3 Pertaining To The City Flag
	Moberly Flag Contest
	ordinance repealing and adopting Sec. 2-3
	Moberly Community Betterment flag recommendation

	#6.	An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Missouri Highways And Transportation Commission Governor’s Transportation Cost Share Agreement.
	Gov. Cost Share Ord Summary Sheet
	Industrial Park Street Extension Cost Share Agreement Ordinance
	modot agreement govenors cost

	#7.	An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial Assistance Award With Terms And Conditions For Wabash Heights Stormwater Improvements.
	Wabash Heights Stormwater F-A Ord Summary Sheet
	Wabash Heights Stormwater Financial Assistance Ordinance
	Moberly- General  Terms and Conditions - Attachment 1 - D083E3E22938
	doc06925320230802140931

	#8.	An Ordinance Authorizing The City Manager To Execute A Financial Assistance Award With Terms And Conditions For Seven Bridges Stormwater Improvements.
	8-7-23 Summary Sheet7 Bridges Finance Ordinance ARPA_
	Seven Bridges Financial Assistance Ordinance
	Moberly - General  Terms and Conditions - Attachment 1 -  DF67F243F43C
	Moberly - FAA - DF67F243F43C

	#9.	A Resolution Authorizing The Destruction Of Certain Local Government Records.
	2023-08-07 Summary Sheet Purchasing Personnel Record Destruction Summary Sheet
	2023-08-07 Records Destruction Resolution HR
	Exhibit A 2023-08-07

	#10.	A Resolution Appropriating Money Out Of The Treasury Of The City Of Moberly, Missouri.
	Appropriation Resolution, August 7, 2023 Agenda Summary
	08-07-2023 Appropriation Resolution

	#11.	Consideration Of A Motion To Move The September 4, 2023, City Council Meeting To September 5, 2023.
	Move Council Meeting for Holiday

	#12.	A Proposal From The Tourism Advisory Commission.
	Tourism proposals June 13
	CraftFair2023
	Tourism Minutes June 13

	#13.	Public Comments.
	#14.	Consideration Of A Motion To Adjourn To A Work Session Followed By A Closed Session To Discuss The Status Of Real Estate and Personnel. (Closed Statue 610.021) (2,3).
	Bottom

